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NAPCO Security Technologies, Inc.
(NASDAQ:NSSC) is one of the world’s leading
manufacturers of advanced electronic security
devices, that are fueling fast-growing recurring
service revenues, as well as a leading provider
of school safety solutions. The Company
provides commercial, institutional and residential security through a professional network
of tens of thousands of security & fire alarm
dealers, integrators, locksmiths and
contractors worldwide. Its innovative,
synergistic products and technologies provide
the security solutions and qualities essential to
keeping today’s businesses, campuses,
healthcare facilities, houses of worship and
residences protected, connected & secure.

the Company introduced two award-winning,
integrated cell-based security systems with
StarLink Inside®: FireLink® Series Dual Path
Cell/IP Fire Alarm Control Panels for commercial fire & life-safety protection; and iSecure®
Security & Connected Home Systems, an affordable all-inclusive smart home/security solution
including choice of touchscreens, pre-enrolled
sensors and Go-Anywhere® Smart Hub, App
and assorted upsell options, from video cameras to doorbells. Both feature integral LTE
Cell/IP communications onboard, new cloudbased programming, a wide array of pro-grade
accessories e.g., life-safety CO-, strobe and
smoke-detectors, plus the proven labor and
equipment-cost savings NAPCO is known for.

One of NAPCO’s strong growth drivers is
recurring revenue services from its increasingly
popular cellular communicators and connected
home/business-products. A category-leading
brand, NAPCO StarLink® Alarm Communicators
report alarms on the LTE® cellular network,
universally from any brand of security system
or commercial fire alarm, replacing vanishing/
retiring telephone landlines and older cell
networks. Ideal for retrofitting the millions of
installed security and fire alarm systems, or
being incorporated in new alarm systems,
StarLink®, StarLink Connect®, and StarLink Fire®
have become the professionals’ proven go-to
universal solution. Checking all the boxes,
they’re easy to install, economical & dependably
perform via a choice of the Nation’s leading
cyber-protected cell networks, simultaneously
protecting security consumers and dealers’
account bases and valuation.

A long-trusted source for school security in
some of the largest private and public
institutions and school systems across the
country, NAPCO products help protect schools
from Los Angeles Unified to Boston Public and
Houston Independent School Districts; and
universities from NYU & Columbia on the East,
to Pepperdine & Stanford in the West, and
myriad in between. The Company’s four
divisions, NAPCO, Alarm Lock, Continental
Access and Marks USA, address school &
campus lock-down & emergency response
needs for all applications and budgets, with
fast digital LTE alarm-reporting technologies,
mechanical and electronic access locking, plus
enterprise-class global integrated access
control, alarms & video.

Leveraging StarLink’s technology & popularity,

Architectural Door Hardware,
Locks, Life Safety & Exit Trim

Part of its ongoing Safer-Schools security
initiative, the Company continues to evolve its
range of school security solutions, including
Marks USA’ economical retrofit LocDown®

NASDAQ:NSSC

Locks, with a key on the inside-door, and Alarm
Lock’s electronic locks that lock either locally
from portable teachers’ keyfobs, or in seconds,
globally across the school, using the wireless
PIN/ID-Card lock network, activated from any
one lock, or the school-server. Customizable
ArchiTech® Wireless Networx® School Access
Locks support multitechnology IDs, emergency
keyfobs, plus feature a flashing strobe indicator
on the inner door to confirm lockdown and
reassure occupants. Campus-wide, NAPCO
offers budget-saving phone-line-free StarLink
LTE Cell/IP Alarm & Fire Alarm Reporting to any
monitoring facility, and Continental’s CA4K full
enterprise solution, integrating video, alarms,
access control, locks, threat-level and
visitor-management with scalability that
painlessly grows with any campus.
And, as COVID-19 has created a host of new
challenges for school, healthcare and corporate
campuses, NAPCO’s Alarm Lock & Marks
divisions now offer new Germ-Away™
antimicrobial finish options on their mechanical,
architectural & electronic locking products; while
Continental Access’ flagship access control
platform, offers a contactless solution with its
CA4K® Smart App that includes built in access
ID credential for any smart device – reducing
touch points, for quick controlled access through
doors, wireless locks & elevators. In addition to
providing enterprise control, personnel & lockdown functions to security management, the
Continental App uniquely works with any brand
ID-Card readers, old or new, as well as with all
leading brands of wireless locks, including that
of the Company’s Alarm Lock Division – opening
up a vast potential market segment for both.

CEO Letter to Shareholders

Dear Fellow Shareholders,
In the face of unprecedented
challenges caused by COVID-19,
NAPCO has demonstrated
exemplary strength and resiliency.
While we saw a decline in hardware
sales beginning late in the third
fiscal quarter of 2020, our recurring
monthly revenues (RMR) continued
to increase significantly during a
very difficult period.
Prior to the pandemic, we were on
pace for a record-setting year in
terms of revenue and profitability.
The pandemic severely impacted
the entire security industry as many
states prohibited normal business
interactions between security
dealers and their customers,
causing a temporary drop in
revenue. We believe that this
industry-wide impact did not have
any significant effect on NAPCO’s
market share. Fortunately, positive
signs are emerging with distributor
sell-through improving.
The strength and intelligence of
our business model is reflected by
FY2020 net sales of $101.4 million,
nearly level to $102.9 million in
revenue for FY2019. Our ability to
deliver sturdy financial performance
in such a challenging business
environment was largely due to a
38% growth in recurring monthly
revenue (RMR) during FY2020,
reaching $24.0 million as compared
to $17.4 million the prior year. RMR
delivered record gross margins of
82% for FY2020 as compared to
78% in FY2019, with an annual run
rate of $27.5 million based on our
June 2020 recurring revenue.

Adjusted EBITDA* during FY2020
was $14.7 million as compared to
$15.0 million for FY2019. Adjusted
EBITDA per share was $0.80 in
FY2020 as compared to $0.81 for
the previous year. Operating
income - prior to a non-recurring
impairment charge - was $12.7
million for FY2020 as compared
to $13.5 million for FY2019. Net
income for FY2020 was $8.5
million as compared to $12.2
million for the prior year. Earnings
per share (diluted) for FY2020 was
$0.46 versus $0.66 for FY2019.
Financial stability was also reflected in our balance sheet. Cash and
cash equivalents grew to $18.2
million on June 30, 2020 as
compared to $8.0 million on June 30,
2019. Working capital - defined as
current assets less current liabilities
- was $62.8 million on June 30,
2020 as compared to working
capital of $51.1 million on June
30, 2019. Our current ratio - defined as current assets divided by
current liabilities - also rose to
5.0:1 as of June 30, 2020, up from
4.6:1 the prior year.
To rekindle our Pre-COVID
momentum, we are focusing on
several key areas: expanding RMR
opportunities to encompass all
NAPCO products and services;
continuing to lead in product
innovation; seizing opportunities
across the education sector; and
by carefully managing costs.
Continued growth in recurring
service revenues
The disruption caused by
COVID-19 has not impaired

*See table on inside back cover (page 63)
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Richard L. Soloway
Chairman, President, and CEO

NAPCO’s growth in RMR, which
grew by 35% during Q4 of
FY2020, achieving an 83% gross
margin for the quarter and 82% for
the entire fiscal year.
We have several new products that
have strong potential to increase
annual RMR. For example, in late
December we introduced iSecure®,
an easy-to-install all-inclusive
cellular alarm system being sold
primarily to small- to mid-sized
business and residences. This
innovative product has major
growth potential, as less than
20% of all homes currently have
a professionally installed and
monitored security system: an
important opportunity that should
not be materially impacted by
competing DIY products.
iSecure combines advanced
security & connected home
features with convenient one-hour
installation by a professional

security dealer. iSecure offers all of
the “bells and whistles” common
to far more expensive alarm
systems. This feature-rich system
offers full scalability up to 80
intrusion and fire zones, accommodating up to 96 users, which is
ideal for small- to mid-sizes
companies. iSecure also features a
built-in Starlink networked radio
that enables remote programming
and control of connected home
services, along with touch-screens,
doorbell and video cameras,
wireless carbon monoxide, smoke
and glass break detectors, plus
auxiliary keypads, key fobs, and
panic alarms. While iSecure is still
in its infancy, initial dealer reaction
has been extremely positive.
In FY2021, we plan to introduce
Air Access®, a new cloud-based
access locking system that utilizes
readily available cellular telephone
communications instead of having
to be connected to the customer’s
IT system. Air Access technology
expands RMR profitability throughout our locking and access control
divisions. User benefits include
not having to invest in IT personnel or hardware, not requiring
on-site data back-up or software
updates, and remote access from
any smart device.
As the only company offering
solutions that encompass all three
security verticals - NAPCO fire and
burglary alarms; Alarm Lock and
Marks USA locking devices and
connectivity; and Continental
Access systems control - we
have the ability to expand RMR
company-wide through our
proprietary Fusion Technology
Solutions. Fusion Technology
incorporates fully interoperable
enterprise class solutions involving
all NAPCO products and services
along with virtually all products

being marketed by competitors
and private label partners.

seeing encouraging levels of
quotation activity.

A Leader in Product Innovation

Among America’s 100,000+ K-12
schools and 10,000+ colleges and
universities, less than 10% of these
institutions have been adequately
protected against active shooters
or intruders. The School Violence
Prevention and Mitigation Act of
2019 authorized the spending of
$2 billion over the next 10 years
to upgrade school security. In
addition, Department of Justice
(DOJ) grants and rising state
budget allocations have primed
the pump for future growth.

Ongoing investments in R&D
serve to maintain our competitive
edge. R&D spending for FY2020
remained relatively constant at
$7.3 million or 7% of sales as
compared to $7.2 million or 7%
of sales for the prior year. This
long-term investment has allowed
us to expand high margin RMR
into all business units.
For example, we have developed
advanced commercial fire alarm
systems that replace plain old
telephone service (POTS) copper
telephone land lines with the latest
cellular-based technologies. The
upgrading of outdated fire alarm
systems is a major opportunity
since the federal government no
longer requires POTS lines to be
maintained. NAPCO and its
dealers also benefit from the
federally-mandated replacement
of outdated 3G and CDMA
cellular-based communications
with 4G and 5G technologies, with
a planned sunset date scheduled
over the next 18 months.
Expanding sales to schools and
universities
Expanding our fully integrated and
interoperable technologies into
the education market remains a
top priority. The COVID-19
pandemic negatively impacted
spending at certain K-12 schools,
colleges, and universities, causing
some postponements but not
cancellations of planned security
upgrades. On the positive side, it
has also presented extended
windows for system installations
due to the absence of students
and teachers. As a result, we are
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With a full suite of products and
solutions at varying price points,
and supported by a sizable team
of expert integrators, NAPCO is
capable of serving the specialized
needs of schools, colleges, houses
of worship, hospitals, prison/
detention centers, and many other
public and private institutions.
Effective cost management
In response to adverse business
conditions, we are proactively
managing all non-essential costs.
For example, Selling, General and
Administrative (SG&A) expenses
for the most recent fiscal year
remained relatively constant at
$23.7 million or 23% of sales as
compared to $23.2 million or
23% of revenues the prior year.
Equipped with corporate offices,
R&D, and a manufacturing facility
in Amityville NY in conjunction
with an ISO-9001 certified low-cost
manufacturing facility in the
Dominican Republic, NAPCO can
quickly adapt to changing market
conditions. These resources allow
us to scale production up and
down to meet demand in the most
cost-efficient manner possible.

Our products are mostly made
in the Dominican Republic, which
insulates us from China-based
tariffs while also reducing risks
associated with unreliable quality,
delayed shipments and supply
chain interruptions, and potential
theft of intellectual property.
Our future outlook
While the long-term economic
impact of COVID-19 is still uncertain, I see our future prospects as
very positive.
Prior to the pandemic, NAPCO
achieved 23 consecutive quarters
of year-over-year record revenues.
While COVID-19 broke that streak,
I’m confident that we will quickly
rebound during any economic
recovery and begin another
record-setting streak. My optimism
is based on two extremely positive
signs: our distributors are reporting increased sell-thru of NAPCO
products and services; and home
sales are booming, particularly in
non-urban areas.
With daily reports of increased
crime and incidents of rioting and
looting, security concerns are on
the rise throughout our society,
including homeowners, small to
mid-sized businesses, large

corporations, hospitals, government agencies, as well as strategic
infrastructure. NAPCO is uniquely
positioned to profit from rising
security concerns with the synergies of four highly interconnected
divisions: NAPCO; Alarm Lock;
Continental Access, and Marks
USA. Together, these four entities
provide us with the breadth and
flexibility to deliver fully integrated
‘end-to-end’ solutions throughout
our vast distribution network.
NAPCO security dealers prefer
our products and services due to
their outstanding quality, value,
innovation, and technical excellence. As a result, we are ideally
positioned to leverage future RMR
growth opportunities throughout
the multi-billion-dollar electronic
security market.
With the upcoming introduction
of Air Access, we will be able to
generate high margin RMR from
our entire portfolio of products
and services, including intrusion
and fire alarms, connected home
services, locking devices, and
access control. Today, income
from RMR represents nearly 24%
of our total revenue. Our longterm goal is to increase that
percentage to 50% with gross
margins in the vicinity of 80%,

which bodes well for future
profitability.
On the strength of over 1,000
valued employees working in close
partnership with our loyal network
of distributors, security dealers,
integrators, and locksmiths, we will
continue to leverage our financial
strength and stability to weather
the current storm and emerge
even stronger.
With senior corporate management currently owning approximately 36% of all outstanding
shares, our goals and objectives
are closely aligned with the
interests of other shareholders.
In an increasing unstable and
opportunity-filled world, we
will work harder than ever to
deliver outstanding value to our
customers and continued return
on investment to our fellow
shareholders.
Sincerely,

Richard L. Soloway
Chairman, President, and CEO

* Non-GAAP Information. Certain non-GAAP measures are included in this document, including EBITDA, non-GAAP operating income and
Adjusted EBITDA. We define EBITDA as GAAP net income plus income tax expense (benefit), net interest expense and depreciation and
amortization expense. Non-GAAP operating income does not include impairment of goodwill, amortization of intangibles, restructuring
charges, stock-based compensation expense and other infrequent or unusual charges. These non-GAAP measures are provided to enhance
the user’s overall understanding of our financial performance. By excluding these charges our non-GAAP results provide information to
management and investors that is useful in assessing NAPCO’s core operating performance and in comparing our results of operations on a
consistent basis from period to period. The presentation of this information is not meant to be a substitute for the corresponding financial
measures prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Investors are encouraged to review the reconciliation of
GAAP to non-GAAP financial measures included on page 63 of this document.
This letter contains statements relating to future results of the Company (including certain projections and business trends) that are “forward-looking statements” as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Actual results may differ materially from those
projected as a result of certain risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to, changes in political and economic conditions, demand for
and market acceptance of new and existing products, as well as other risks and uncertainties detailed from time to time in the filings of the
Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Trademarks of NAPCO: NAPCO, StarLink, StarLink Connect, iBridge, iBridge Messenger, iSee Video, LocDown, Lifesaver, Alarm Lock,
Continental Access, Marks USA, NAPCO Commercial, Trilogy, Trilogy Networx, ArchiTech, SAVI, iSecure, Air Access
Trademarks of their respective companies: AT&T, Verizon Network Certified, Control4, NASDAQ
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PART I

ITEM 1: BUSINESS.
Overview
Napco Security Technologies, Inc (“NAPCO”, “the Company”, “we”) is one of the leading manufacturers and designers
of high-tech electronic security devices, as well as a leading provider of school safety solutions. We offer a diversified
array of security products, encompassing access control systems, door-locking products, intrusion and fire alarm systems
and video surveillance products. These products are used for commercial, residential, institutional, industrial and
governmental applications, and are sold worldwide principally to independent distributors, dealers and installers of security
equipment. We have experienced significant growth in recent years, primarily driven by fast growing recurring service
revenues generated from wireless communication services for intrusion and fire alarm systems, as well as our school
security products that are designed to meet the increasing needs to enhance school security as a result of on-campus
shooting and violence in the U.S.
Since 1969, NAPCO has established a heritage and proven record in the professional security community for reliably
delivering both advanced technology and high quality security solutions, building many of the industry’s best-known
brands, such as NAPCO Security Systems, Alarm Lock, Continental Access, Marks USA, and other popular product lines:
including Gemini and F64-Series hardwire/wireless intrusion systems and iSee Video internet video solutions. We are also
dedicated to developing innovative technology and producing the next generation of reliable security solutions that utilize
remote communications and wireless networks, including our StarLink, iBridge, and more recently the iSecure product
lines. Today, millions of businesses, institutions, homes, and people around the globe are protected by products from the
NAPCO Group of Companies.
Our net sales were $101.4 million and $102.9 million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The
change in our net sales was driven primarily by increased sales of our products in the recurring revenue business as offset
by a 34% decrease in sales of hardware in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020 as compared to the same period a year ago. This
decrease was due primarily to the economic effects of the COVID-19 pandemic and the related closures mandated by
federal and state governments. Our net income was $8.5 million and $12.2 million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020
and 2019, respectively. The decrease in net income during this period was due primarily to the COVID-19 impact described
above as partially offset by the growth of our recurring revenue business and implementation of cost-reduction measures.
Our Products and Services
The Company’s products and services are comprised of the following:
•

Alarm Lock standalone and networked digital door locks

•

Marks USA standard and custom Locksets, Panic Devices and Door Closers

•

NAPCO Gemini intrusion alarm equipment

•

NAPCO StarLink and FireLink cellular communication devices and services

•

NAPCO iSecure integrated cellular intrusion alarm systems

•

Continental Access door controllers and hosted services for access control
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Door Security Products.
The Company manufactures a variety of door locking devices including microprocessor-based electronic door locks with
push button, card reader and bio-metric operation, door alarms, mechanical door locks and simple dead bolt locks. These
devices may control a single door or, in the case of some of the Company’s microprocessor-based door locks, may be
networked with the Company’s access control systems and controlled remotely.
Intrusion and Fire Alarm Systems.
Alarm systems usually consist of various detectors, a control panel, a digital keypad and signaling equipment. When a
break-in occurs, an intrusion detector senses the intrusion and activates a control panel via hard-wired or wireless
transmission that sets off the signaling equipment and, in most cases, causes a bell or siren to sound. Communication
equipment such as a cellular or digital communicator may be used to transmit the alarm signal to a central station or another
person selected by a customer. Cellular communicators have become more popular and panels and communicators are
trending towards integration so that many alarm panels will contain an integrated cellular communication device.
The Company manufactures and markets the following products for these alarm systems:
•

Automatic Communicators. When a control panel is activated by a signal from an intrusion detector, it activates
a communicator that can automatically dial one or more pre-designated telephone numbers utilizing wired
(“landline”) or cellular communications systems. If programmed to do so, a digital communicator dials the
telephone number of a central monitoring station and communicates in computer language to a digital
communicator receiver, which signals an alarm message.

•

Cellular communication devices. A cellular communication device connects to the communicator and is used in
lieu of, or in addition to, a landline for communicating with a central monitoring station.

•

Control Panels. A control panel is the "brain" of an alarm system. When activated by any one of the various types
of intrusion detectors, it can activate an audible alarm and/or various types of communication devices.

•

Combination Control Panels/Digital Communicators and Digital Keypad Systems. A combination control panel,
digital communicator and a digital keypad has continued to be the leading configuration in terms of dealer and
consumer preference. Benefits of the combination format include the cost efficiency resulting from a single
microcomputer function, as well as the reliability and ease of installation gained from the simplicity and
sophistication of micro-computer technology.

•

Fire Alarm Control Panel. Multi-zone fire alarm control panels, which accommodate an optional digital
communicator for reporting to a central station, are also manufactured by the Company.

•

Area Detectors. The Company's area detectors are both passive infrared heat detectors and combination
microwave/passive infrared detectors that are linked to alarm control panels. Passive infrared heat detectors
respond to the change in heat patterns caused by an intruder moving within a protected area. Combination units
respond to both changes in heat patterns and changes in microwave patterns occurring at the same time.

Cellular communication services.
The Company provides cellular access for the cellular communication devices described above. These services are
provided and invoiced on a month to month basis. Revenues from services have grown significantly over the past several
years, increasing 100% from fiscal 2018 to fiscal 2020. These revenues, which currently have a gross margin of
approximately 82% as of June 30, 2020, represent approximately 24% of our total revenue as of June 30, 2020. The
Company’s long-term goal is to have recurring revenues from services to represent at least 50% of total revenue.
Access Control Systems.
Access control systems consist of one or more of the following: various types of identification readers (e.g. card readers,
hand scanners), a control panel, a PC-based computer and electronically activated door-locking devices. When an
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identification card or other identifying information is entered into the reader, the information is transmitted to the control
panel/PC which then validates the data and determines whether or not to grant access by electronically deactivating the
door locking device. An electronic log is kept which records various types of data regarding access activity.
Video Surveillance Systems.
Video surveillance systems typically consist of one or more video cameras, a control panel and a video monitor or PC.
More advanced systems can also include a recording device and some type of remote communication device such as an
internet connection to a PC or browser-enabled cell phone. The system allows the user to monitor various locations at once
while recorders save the video images for future use. Remote communication devices can allow the user to view and
control the system from a remote location. The Company designs, engineers, and markets the software and control panels
discussed above. It also buys and resells various video cameras, PC-based computers and peripheral equipment for video
surveillance systems.
The Company designs, engineers, manufactures and markets the software and control panels discussed above. It also buys
and resells various identification readers, PC-based computers and various peripheral equipment for access control
systems.
Peripheral Equipment
The Company also markets peripheral and related equipment manufactured by other companies. Revenues from peripheral
equipment have not been significant.
Our Growth Drivers
Recurring Revenue Business
In 2012, we began to generate recurring revenue by developing our ground-breaking cellular radio technology. Since then,
we have continued to introduce additional products generating recurring revenues, primarily in the cellular communication
devices such as our StarLink, iBridge, and more recently the iSecure product lines. These products are installed at the
premises of end customers and we generate revenue by not only upfront purchase of our products, but also monthly
subscription fees for services we perform at our cloud-based operations center to monitor security breaches and fire alarms.
The monthly recurring revenue allows us to generate a more consistent and predictable stream of income and mitigates the
risk of fluctuation in market demand. In addition, these products tend to generate higher gross margin, which has the effect
of improving our profitability. We believe there is a significant market opportunity for these products and services, because
many commercial and residential customers prefer to purchase real-time security monitoring services to ensure continuous
protection and swift responses to security breaches and fire alarms.
We also experienced accelerating growth in our recurring revenue from sales of fire radio products. In the past few years,
we introduced several Starlink fire radio solutions, including a Starlink dual path radio that can utilize cellular or internet.
Dual path radios are required in certain areas such as New York City or L.A. County. A third fire radio was introduced
approximately 18 months ago in the form of a Firelink fire panel with a Starlink fire radio built into it. In general, the gross
margin for fire radio products is higher than the other Starlink solutions. The sales of fire radio products have contributed
positively to our gross margin during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. We expect that fire radio products will continue
to be an increasing portion of the overall mix of our recurring revenue and positively impact our gross margin.
We intend to continue pursuing recurring revenue opportunities by developing new and innovative products and
implementing aggressive and effective sales and marketing effort. As of June 30, 2020, our recurring revenue constituted
approximately 24% of our total revenue, and our strategy is to increase the percentage of our recurring revenue versus total
revenue in the foreseeable future.
School Security and Public Safety
The recent growth of our business is partly driven by the significant need for increased security in schools and other public
spaces. In the U.S., there are over 100,000 K-12 schools, over 10,000 colleges and universities and over 350,000 houses
of worship. Less than 10% of these institutions have adequate protection from an active shooter or intruder. As a result of
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increased “active shooter” incidents, a number of U.S. states and local governments have substantially increased school
security budgets. Many colleges and universities have large endowments which are starting to be utilized to address this
critical issue. Security equipment and services focused on education has reached over $3 billion in revenues and this
segment is still in the early stages as many K-12 schools, colleges and universities have still not addressed this issue.
With a full suite of products and solutions, we believe we are well positioned to meet the security needs of schools, houses
of worship, and other places where people congregate. Depending on the needs of the school and their budget, the
Company offers (i) Standalone LocDown locks which can be operated by a teacher, (ii) a series of Networx standalone
wireless locks which communicate with central controls, or (iii) enterprise-class access control with cellular connectivity,
which allows the head of security to lock down all or part of the campus, including dorm rooms, classrooms and
administrative offices, from a centralized office.
The Company has had several significant wins in school security contracts, including the Houston Independent School
District, which is the largest school district in Texas and the seventh largest in the U.S. On this project the Company
implemented its Enterprise-wide security solution via its Continental Access control with intrusion, video and alarm
communicators. Another example is Pepperdine University in Malibu, California, where the Company provided a
lockdown system in place for its over 1,700 dorm rooms that required both locking and access control technologies. We
were chosen because we were the only security company that has both locking and access control technologies that work
on the same platform and met the needs of the university.
Competitive Strengths
The security products industry is highly competitive. The Company's primary competitors are comprised of approximately
12 other companies that manufacture and market security equipment to distributors, dealers, central stations and original
equipment manufacturers. The Company believes that not one of these competitors is dominant in the industry. Most of
these companies have substantially greater financial and other resources than the Company. However, unlike the Company,
we believe that none of these competitors manufactures all key building security verticals: Intrusion Alarms and Access
Control, Connectivity, and Locking devices. As more and more security installations include multiple verticals, the various
systems need to communicate with each other. By having everything manufactured under one roof, we can offer customers
one integrated platform solution without the risk of incompatible equipment from multiple vendors to “talk” to each other.
Furthermore, many of our distributors, customers, and dealers prefer a single source of supply with more consistency in
quality, pricing and timely shipment of products. In addition, we believe our competitors will face substantial challenges
and barriers to duplicate or establish similar integrated offerings for all of these key markets.
We also have a manufacturing facility located in the Dominican Republic (“D.R.”) that manufactures over 90% of our
products. It is located in a free zone which is a tax-advantaged location. The Company also benefits from the lower tariffs
available to it under The Dominican Republic-Central America FTA (CAFTA-DR). The D.R. manufacturing operation is
vertically integrated and operates in a low-cost location, where the typical labor cost is approximately one-tenth (1/10) of
the cost for similar services in the U.S. The D.R. facility allows us to maintain a lower manufacturing overhead and improve
our gross margin. This facility is currently running one shift, plus a second shift on select products with the ability to run
3 full shifts. Additional staffing is readily available for future expansion. The approximate annual revenue that can be
generated per shift is approximately $100 million. The building is a self-contained “concrete bunker” with ability to
withstand Category 5 hurricanes. Both locations contain enough land to build additional space; 180,000 square feet of
additional manufacturing space in the D.R., and approximately 100,000 square feet of office and warehousing space in
Amityville, should the need arise. The Company has multiple transportation options between the D.R. and Amityville
facilities. Shipping times from the D.R. to the Amityville facility are typically 6-8 days.
We perform our managerial and administrative activities in the U.S. in our facility located in Amityville, New York, which
is 100,000 square feet and serves as Company’s headquarters, containing its corporate offices, research and development,
design, sales administration, technical services, finance, procurement, manufacturing control, warehousing, and shipping
operations. We believe that our ability to provide timely and effective technical support and services to our U.S. customers
from our U.S. facility in Amityville is an advantage over other companies in the security industry that have moved customer
service functions overseas to countries such as India and Philippines. Our dealers and customers rely substantially on the
ability to communicate real-time to experts who can provide clear and understandable advice and instruction, because they
are usually dealing with highly technical problems on a job site with little time to spare.
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The Company competes primarily on the basis of the features, quality, reliability and pricing of, and the incorporation of
the latest innovative and technological advances into, its products. The Company also competes by offering technical
support services to its customers. In addition, the Company competes on the basis of its expertise, its proven products, its
reputation and its ability to provide products to customers on a timely basis. The inability of the Company to compete with
respect to any one or more of the aforementioned factors could have an adverse impact on the Company's business.
Our Strategy
Due to paradigm changes in the security marketplace, the Company’s focus has been on mandatory (non-elective) systems,
such as fire systems with central station monitoring in commercial buildings, and iOT-driven connectivity services in high
growth and margin categories. As copper land lines are phased out and more people switch to cellular phone service for
their homes, our cellular communication services become increasingly attractive in these installations, both new and
existing. We have built a strong competitive position by developing a wide range of software capabilities from embedded
micro-coding to enterprise system software, database design, mobile applications development, user portal design,
mechanical and electronic mechanisms and telecommunications, featuring our significant radio and cellular
communications expertise. This has enabled us to create recurring revenue opportunities across product lines, and we
intend to expand such opportunities to generate recurring revenue that account for over 50% of our total revenue and to
sustain profitability from recurring accounts receivable margins of 80%. We are also focusing on security solutions for the
healthcare industry, including anti-ligature lockets designed for life safety and liability reduction in hospitals, behavior
health institutions and correctional facilities, and such products are highly profitable while complying with applicable
regulatory and health standards. We believe that these accomplishments are possible due to our advanced set of in-house
engineering technology capability from mechanical to electronic and electro-mechanical products, digital, microprocessor
and analog circuit design, networking products, and wireless and cellular communications electronics.
Research and Development
The success of the Company’s business depends substantially on its ability to develop new and proprietary technology and
products. The research and development (“R&D”) costs incurred by the Company are charged to expense as incurred and
are included in "Operating expenses" in the consolidated statements of operations. During the fiscal years ended June 30,
2020 and 2019, the Company expended approximately $7,257,000 and $7,212,000, respectively, on research and
development activities conducted primarily by its engineering department to develop and improve the products. The
Company intends to continue to conduct a significant portion of its future research and development activities internally.
Employees
As of June 30, 2020, the Company had 1,161 full-time employees.
Marketing
The Company's staff of approximately 62 sales and marketing support employees located at the Company's Amityville
offices sells and markets the products primarily to independent distributors and wholesalers of security alarm and security
hardware equipment. Management estimates that these channels of distribution represented approximately 52%, and 57%
of the Company's total sales for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The remaining revenues are
primarily from installers and governmental institutions. The Company currently has approximately 12,000 customers made
up of distributors, installing dealers and wholesalers who purchase our products from distributors or directly from the
Company. The Company's sales representatives periodically contact existing and potential customers to introduce new
products and create demand for those as well as other Company products. These sales representatives, together with the
Company's technical personnel, provide training and other services to wholesalers and distributors so that they can better
service the needs of their customers. In addition to direct sales efforts, the Company advertises in technical trade
publications and participates in trade shows in major United States and European cities.
Seasonality
The Company's fiscal year begins on July 1 and ends on June 30. Historically, the end users of the Company’s products
want to install its products prior to the summer; therefore sales of its products historically peak in the period April 1 through
June 30, the Company's fiscal fourth quarter, and are reduced in the period July 1 through September 30, the Company's
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fiscal first quarter. In addition, demand for our products is affected by the housing and construction markets. Deterioration
of the current economic conditions may also affect this trend.
Raw Materials
The Company prepares specifications for component parts used in the products and purchases the components from outside
sources or fabricates the components itself. These components, if standard, are generally readily available; if specially
designed for the Company, there is usually more than one alternative source of supply available to the Company on a
competitive basis. The Company generally maintains inventories of all critical components. A majority of purchased
components are sourced from U.S. and Asian suppliers and are typically shipped directly to the D.R. The Company for the
most part is not dependent on any one source for its raw materials. The Company believes that any vendor that is currently
the sole source of a component can be replaced without a material impact on the Company.
Corporate Information and History
The Company was founded in 1969 and incorporated as NAPCO in December 1971 in the State of Delaware. NAPCO
went public on NASDAQ with the ticker symbol “NSSC”, in 1972.
In 1987, the Company acquired a locking company, Alarm Lock Systems, the first of its three acquisitions. In 1990, the
Company began the process of moving most of its manufacturing operations offshore. After studying various options, the
D.R. was chosen as it is relatively close to our headquarters (three and half hours by plane), is in the same time zone, has
a relatively stable political and economic situation and is a low cost manufacturing environment. In 1995, the Company
built a state-of-the-art 180,000 square foot facility in the D.R., and we continued to improve and upgrade the facility’s
manufacturing capability by utilizing and acquiring the latest technology and equipment. In 2000, the Company made
another acquisition, acquiring an access control company, Continental Instruments. In 2008, the Company acquired
another locking company, Marks USA.
Our executive offices are located at 333 Bayview Ave, Amityville NY 11701. Our telephone number is (631) 842-9400.
Website Access to Company Reports
Copies of our filings under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (including annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to these reports) are available free of charge on our
website (www.napcosecurity.com) on the same day they are electronically filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Company has one class of Common Stock which trades on the NASDAQ Global Market under the
symbol “NSSC”.
ITEM 1A: RISK FACTORS
The risks described below are among those that could materially and adversely affect the Company’s business, financial
condition or results of operations. These risks could cause actual results to differ materially from historical results and
from any results predicted by any forward-looking statements related to conditions or events that may occur in the future.
Our business operation and financial performance are adversely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and related
events.
We are subject to risks related to the global pandemic associated with the COVID-19 disease, which has spread globally
to the U.S. and other countries where we have operations, including the Dominican Republic. Numerous federal and state
governmental jurisdictions have imposed “stay-at-home” orders, quarantines, travel bans and similar governmental orders
and restrictions to control the spread of COVID-19. Such orders or restrictions have resulted in business closures, work
stoppages, slowdowns and delays in commercial activities, unprecedented and widespread unemployment, disruptions to
ports and other shipping infrastructure, border closures, and other travel or health-related restrictions, thereby negatively
impacting our customers, suppliers, distributors, employees, offices, and the industry in which we operate.
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As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and the related economic downturn, we have experienced a decline in the demand
for our products, as our distributors and customers reduced orders and adjusted their inventory channel in response to
slowdown in spending and demand for security products. A prolonged stay-at-home order, or any other continued decrease
in economic activity as a result of COVID-19 pandemic, would have a negative adverse impact on our customers and their
financial condition, which could impact their ability to meet their financial obligations and could result in elevated levels
of delinquencies and bad debt losses. In addition, we rely upon our third-party vendors to provide parts and materials for
us to produce our products. If any of these vendors are unable to continue to provide us with these parts and materials, it
could negatively impact our ability to serve our customers. We also could be adversely affected if key personnel or a
significant number of employees were to become unavailable due to the effects and restrictions of COVID-19 pandemic
in areas where we operate.
We manufacture substantially all of products in our factory in Dominican Republic, which are then shipped to us in the
United States for further distribution. The government authorities in Dominican Republic have imposed curfews and
restrictions as a result of the pandemic that impacted activities at the factory, which may reduce our productivity and
output. Additional restrictions and limitation on international travel and transportation, including air travel, may make it
more difficult for us to ship and transport products from Dominican Republic to the U.S., which may cause delays and
disruptions in our supply chain.
Moreover, if we determine that intangible assets are not realizable as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, we may be
required to write down these assets or incur impairment charge under current accounting standards, which would have a
negative effect on our consolidated financial statements. The continuing adverse economic conditions in the U.S. due to
the pandemic have and may continue to reduce revenues associated with our intangible assets, including assets acquired
in our prior acquisitions, and result in a reduction of future expected cash flows. Such a reduction could result in significant
impairment charges to adjust the carrying value of the intangible assets.
The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic remains highly uncertain and subject to change. We cannot predict when the
pandemic will end and when related governmental orders and restrictions will be eased or lifted, and any extension or
prolonged implementation of these restrictions will further adversely affect our business, customers and financial results.
Even after such orders and restrictions are eased or lifted, the severe economic harm and recession inflicted upon the
jurisdictions and areas in which we operate may last for an extended period of time and continue to adversely affect our
business and financial performance, and there is no guarantee that we will be able to act quickly and effectively to return
to our normal operations.
Our business could be materially adversely affected as a result of general economic and market conditions.
We are subject to the effects of general economic and market conditions. In the event that the any of these conditions
deteriorate, our revenue, profit and cash-flow levels could be materially adversely affected in future periods. In the event
of such deterioration, many of our current or potential future customers may experience serious cash flow problems and
as a result may, modify, delay or cancel purchases of our products. Additionally, customers may not be able to pay, or may
delay payment of, accounts receivable that are owed to us. If such events do occur, they may result in our expenses being
too high in relation to our revenues and cash flows.
During weak economic times, the available pool of independent distributors, dealers and installers of security equipment
may decline as the prospects for home building and home renovation projects diminish, which may have a corresponding
impact on our growth prospects. In addition, there is an increased risk during these periods that an increased percentage of
independent distributors, dealers and installers of security equipment will file for bankruptcy protection, which may harm
our reputation, revenue, profitability and results of operations.
The markets we serve are highly competitive and we may be unable to compete effectively.
We compete with approximately 12 other companies that manufacture and market security equipment to distributors,
dealers, control stations and original equipment manufacturers in the U.S. Most of these companies may have substantially
greater financial and other resources than the Company. The Company competes primarily on the basis of the features,
quality, reliability and pricing of, and the incorporation of the latest innovative and technological advances into its products,
as well as technical support services to its customers. The Company competes on the basis of its expertise, its proven
products, its reputation and its ability to provide products to customers on a timely basis. The inability of the Company to
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compete with respect to any one or more of the aforementioned factors could have an adverse impact on the Company's
business.
Our business may also be materially adversely affected by the announcement or introduction of new products and services
by our competitors, and the implementation of effective marketing or sales strategies by our competitors. Our industry is
characterized by constantly improved products. There can be no assurance that competitors will not develop products that
are superior to the Company's products. We have historically invested approximately 6% to 8% of annual revenues on
R&D to mitigate this risk. However, many of our competitors have dedicated more resources and capabilities to R&D,
including committing more engineers and capital expenditures, to develop and design new product that may enter the
markets sooner or with more penetration. Future success will depend, in part, on our ability to continue to develop and
market products and product enhancements cost-effectively. The Company's research and development expenditures are
principally targeted at enhancing existing products, and to a lesser extent at developing new ones. Further, there can be no
assurance that the Company will not experience additional price competition, and that such competition may not adversely
affect the Company's revenues and results of operations
We may not be able to maintain or control our expenses proportionate to our sales volumes to generate profit for our
business.
Certain of our expenses are fixed or semi-variable, including our costs for operating our manufacturing facilities. While
expense levels relative to current sales levels result in positive net income and cash flows, if sales levels decrease
significantly and we are unable to reduce expenses proportionately, our business may be adversely affected. The amount
of our operating expenses are subject to variables and factors that may not be within our control, including but are not
limited to, unexpected expenses relating to the manufacturing of products; increased compensation requirement for our
employees and cost of raw materials. A significant portion of our expense is labor cost, including costs for workers who
are operating our facility in the Dominican Republic. While we have been able to control our expenses due to the lower
labor costs in the Dominican Republic, there is no guarantee that such costs will not increase in the future, or that sufficient
number of workers in Dominican Republic will be available to operate the facility efficiently, and our failure to maintain
effective labor costs may adversely affect our results of operations.
Our business could be adversely affected as a result of housing and commercial building market conditions.
We are subject to the effects of housing and commercial building market conditions. The sales of our security products
tend to increase during period in which new housing and commercial real estate constructions are increasing. If these
conditions deteriorate, resulting in declines in new housing or commercial building constructions, existing home or
commercial building sales or renovations, our business, results of operations or financial condition could be materially
adversely affected, particularly in our intrusion and door locking product lines. The condition of the residential and
commercial building markets in which we operate is cyclical and depends on the condition of the economy in the United
States, and on the perceptions of investors of the overall economic outlook. Rising interest rates, declining employment
levels, declining demand for real estate, declining real estate values or periods of general economic slowdown or recession
or the perception that any of these events may occur have negatively impacted the real estate market in the past and may
in the future negatively impact our ability to sell products and generate new revenue sources.
We may not be able to grow our recurring revenue business to generate consistent revenue and profitability.
A significant driver of our growth is our recurring revenue business in which customers who purchased our products and
equipment are required to pay monthly fees for communications services to maintain the operation of such products. Our
recurring revenue products, such as StarLink, iSecure and iBridge, tend to generate higher gross margin and are less
susceptible to volatility of market demand and economic conditions. However, our revenue recurring business is relatively
new and we have limited experience in developing, marketing and selling such products. We also face intense competition
where other companies with greater resources and experience have established a wider and more entrenched customer base
for similar products and services, making it more difficult for us to penetrate into such market. In addition, we are required
to incur costs to maintain a network operations center to provide customer support and services, and to comply with federal
and state regulations governing the operation and communications of these products. Such costs may reduce our
profitability if we are not able to grow and expand the recurring revenue business. As we are increasingly dependent on
recurring revenue products as a driver for growth, our failure to execute our strategy for this business line will materially
adversely affect our financial conditions and prospects.
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We may not be able to sustain and continue the growth of school security products.
We recently experienced significant growth of demand for our security products from schools, universities and other
educational institutions as a result of the national focus on prevention of school violence. Federal and state governmental
authorities have proposed and enacted numerous legislation and laws, including the School Violence Prevention and
Mitigation Act of 2019 that provide increased funding to public schools to implement and enhance security systems. While
our business has benefited from such additional federal and state funding and increased demand, there is no guarantee that
such funding and trend will continue. For example, if school shutdown continues as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic
and various stay-at-home orders imposed by state governments, there could be a reduced need for schools to acquire and
implement security systems, and state and federal government may also decide to reduce funding or impose additional
criteria for funding. These factors may result in a decline of demand for our school security products which in turn may
adversely affect our financial performance.
We rely on distributors to sell our products and an adverse change in our relationship with such distributors may
adversely affect our financial performance.
We distribute our products primarily through independent distributors and wholesalers of security alarm and security
hardware equipment. Our distributors and wholesalers also sell our competitors' products, and if they favor our competitors'
products for any reason, they may fail or reduce their effort to market and sell our products as effectively or to devote
resources necessary to provide effective sales, which would adversely affect our financial performance. In addition, our
distributors order our products and maintain their inventory based on forecasts of potential demands from dealers and end
customers, and our distributors may not be able to forecast such demand accurately, which may adversely affect our ability
to generate sales and revenue in a timely manner. In some cases, distributors may delay ordering our products until they
receive confirmation of orders from dealers and end customers, and this delay may cause disruption and make it more
difficult for us to fill their order timely and effectively, which may adversely affect our revenue and sales.
The financial health of our distributors and wholesalers and our continuing relationships with them are important to our
success. Some of these distributors and wholesalers, particularly smaller firms with limited working capital and resources,
may not be able to withstand adverse changes in business conditions or mitigate the negative impact of a prolonged
economic downturn or recession, including the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The failure of our distributors to
maintain financial heath and success will impact our ability to generate revenues. Furthermore, our relationship with
distributors may change or terminate due to other factors beyond our control, including but are not limited to, acquisition
of distributors by third parties may not be willing to continue the relationship with us; internal restructuring or refocus of
business strategies; and changes in management, all of which may negatively impact our ability to continue to sell to such
distributors. Finally, we generally do not have long-term agreements with distributors who purchase our products primarily
through purchase orders. Without an agreement, we are not able to guarantee that such distributors will not discontinue or
terminate relationship with us at any time, and any loss of distributor will negatively impact our financial conditions and
results of operations.
We may not able to gain widespread or timely market acceptance of our new products and continue to build and
enhance our brand to achieve growth.
We rely on introduction of new products and services to penetrate new markets and identify additional sources of revenues
order to grow our business. However, many of our distributors and customers may not be willing to change or switch to
new products and equipment, or may require an extended period time to assess, test and evaluate functionalities and
performance of our new products. Any delays in establishing widespread acceptance of our new products may adversely
affect our financial performance and growth. In order to ensure market acceptance of new products, we have incurred and
expect to incur significant expenses in sales and marketing campaign, and we may not be able to justify such costs if the
effort does not produce sufficient sales and customer accounts.
We believe that building and maintaining market awareness, brand recognition and goodwill of our business and products
in a cost-effective manner is important to our overall success in achieving widespread acceptance of our existing and future
products and is an important element in attracting new customers. An important part of our business strategy is to increase
awareness of our brand and to provide marketing leadership, services and support to our distributor and customer network.
While we may choose to engage in a broader marketing campaign to further promote our brand, this effort may not be
successful. Our efforts in developing our brand may be hindered by the marketing efforts of our competitors and our
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reliance on our third parties to promote our brand. If we are unable to cost-effectively maintain and increase awareness of
our brand, our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations could be harmed.
Our financial results could be materially adversely affected as a result of offering extended payment terms to
customers or if we are not able to collect our accounts receivables on a timely basis from major customers.
We regularly grant credit terms beyond 30 days to certain distributors and customers primarily in an effort to keep a full
line of our products in-stock at our customers’ locations. The longer the terms that are granted, the more risk is inherent in
the collection of those receivables. We cannot guarantee that distributors and customers will be able to make payments on
a timely basis even after a thorough review of their credit and financial history. The ability of distributors and customers
to make such payments may be subject to factors beyond our control, including their financial conditions and business
operation. We may also incur additional costs and effort to collect past due receivables without assurance that a sufficient
or any amount of bad debt can be collected.
We sell security products and systems and if our solutions fail for any reason, we could be subject to liability and our
business could suffer.
We sell security products and services, which are designed to secure the safety of our customer and their commercial,
residential, institutional, industrial or governmental properties. Our products and services may contain undetected defects
in the software, infrastructure, third-party components or processes. If these solutions fail for any reason, including due to
defects in our hardware, software, a carrier outage or user error, we could be subject to liability for such failures and our
business could suffer. In addition, our products and systems are not installed by us, and if third parties do not install or
maintain our products correctly, our products and systems may not function properly. If the improper installation or
maintenance of our products and systems leads to service or equipment failures after introduction of, or an upgrade to, our
products and systems, we could experience harm to our branded reputation, claims by our customers or installers or lost
revenue during the period required to address the cause of the problem. Any defect in, or disruption to, our products and
systems could cause consumers not to purchase additional products or systems from us, prevent potential consumers from
purchasing our products and systems or harm our reputation.
We are subject to risks relating to the operation of a manufacturing facility in Dominican Republic.
We operate a manufacturing facility in Dominican Republic where the majority of our products is made and shipped to
our U.S. distributors. The facility requires us to incur certain fixed operating costs that do not fluctuate with changes in
production levels or utilization of our manufacturing capacity. If production levels decline due to lower demand or reduced
customer orders, our fixed costs are spread over reduced levels, which may contribute to decreasing margins and reduced
profitability. Operation of a manufacturing facility also subjects us to certain additional risks, including but not limited to
the following:
•

Unavailability of workers or insufficient workforce to operate the factory;

•

Compliance with local regulatory requirements, including labor laws and tax requirements;

•

Difficulties in communication and coordination with U.S. headquarters;

•

Natural disasters such as hurricanes which may damage our factory; and

•

Effect of general political and economic conditions of the Dominican Republic.

The occurrence of any of these factors may adversely affect the production output and operation of our factory, which will
disrupt our supply chain and negatively impact our financial performance. Furthermore, we have not identified any
alternative third-party factory that can manufacture our products; therefore it would be difficult for us to replace any loss
of output of capacity if our factory in Dominican Republic is not functioning properly or at all.
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Our business could be materially adversely affected by a weakening of the U.S. dollar against the Dominican peso.
We are exposed to foreign currency risks due to our operations in the Dominican Republic. We have significant operations
in the Dominican Republic, which conducts certain transactions in Dominican pesos. We are subject to the risk that
currency exchange rates between the United States and the Dominican Republic will fluctuate significantly, potentially
resulting in an increase in some of our expenses when US dollars are transferred to Dominican pesos to pay these expenses.
For example, if the U.S. dollars weakens and the currency exchange rate is less favorable, it may be more costly for us to
pay expenses for our factory in the Dominican Republic, which may adversely affect our financial conditions and results
of operations.
Our business could be materially adversely affected by adverse tax consequences of offshore operations.
We operate on a global basis, with a portion of our operating income generated outside the United States. We intend to
reinvest these earnings in our foreign operations indefinitely, except where we are able to repatriate these earnings to the
United States without material incremental tax expense. A significant portion of our assets that result from these earnings
remain outside the United States. If these indefinitely reinvested earnings were repatriated into the United States as
dividends, we would be subject to additional withholding taxes.
Our failure to maintain the security of our information and technology networks could adversely affect us.
We are dependent on information technology networks and systems, including the Internet, to process, transmit and store
electronic information and, in the normal course of our business, we collect and retain certain information pertaining to
our distributors, customers, partners and employees, including personal information. If security breaches in connection
with the delivery of our solutions allow unauthorized third parties to access any of this data or obtain control of our systems,
our reputation, business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations could be harmed.
The legal, regulatory and contractual environment surrounding information security, privacy and credit card fraud is
constantly evolving and companies that collect and retain such information are under increasing attack by cyber-criminals
around the world. Further, as the regulatory focus on privacy issues continues to increase and worldwide laws and
regulations concerning the protection of data and personal information expand and become more complex, these potential
risks to our business will intensify. A significant actual or potential theft, loss, fraudulent use or misuse of distributors,
customers, employee or other personally identifiable data, whether by third parties or as a result of employee malfeasance
or otherwise, non-compliance with our contractual or other legal obligations regarding such data or a violation of our
privacy and security policies with respect to such data could result in loss of confidential information, damage to our
reputation, early termination of our business relationships, litigation, regulatory investigations or actions and other
liabilities or actions against us, including significant fines by U.S. federal and state authorities, and other countries and
private claims by companies and individuals for violation of data privacy and security regulations.
In addition, cyber-attacks from computer hackers and cyber criminals and other malicious Internet-based activity continue
to increase generally, and perpetrators of cyber-attacks may be able to develop and deploy viruses, worms, ransomware,
malware, DNS attacks, wireless network attacks, attacks on our cloud networks, phishing attempts, social engineering
attempts, distributed denial of service attacks and other advanced persistent threats or malicious software programs that
attack our products and services, our networks and network endpoints or otherwise exploit any security vulnerabilities of
our products, services and networks. Techniques used to obtain unauthorized access or to sabotage systems change
frequently and generally are not recognized until launched against a target. As a result, we may be unable to anticipate
these techniques or to implement adequate preventative measures. We cannot be certain that advances in cyber-capabilities
or other developments will not compromise or breach the technology protecting the networks that access our platforms
and solutions, and we can make no assurance that we will be able to detect, prevent, timely and adequately address or
mitigate the negative effects of cyber-attacks or other security breaches. If any one of these risks materializes, our business,
financial condition, cash flows or results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.
We rely on the effort and service of Richard L. Soloway, our founder, Chief Executive Officer and major stockholder.
The success of the Company is largely dependent on the effort and service of Richard L. Soloway, who is our founder,
President, Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the Board and a major stockholder. We depend on Mr. Soloway on various
aspects of our business operation, including his experience and knowledge in the industry, extensive relationships with
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distributors and customers, and his leadership to develop and implement business strategies. The loss or reduction of
services by Mr. Soloway could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business and prospects.
Our business could be materially adversely affected as a result of the inability to maintain adequate financing.
While our business is currently solely dependent on cash-flows from operations to fund operations and capital expenditures
we have an unused credit facility in the event that we need to supplement current cash-flows with outside financing. The
credit facility provides for certain financial covenants relating to ratios affected by profit, asset and debt levels. If the
Company’s profits, asset or cash-flow levels decline below the minimums required to meet these covenants and we require
outside financing, the Company may be materially adversely affected. Effects on the Company could include higher
interest costs, reduction in borrowing availability or revocation of these credit facilities.
We are obligated to develop and maintain a system of effective internal controls over financial reporting. These
internal controls may be determined to be not effective, which may adversely affect investor confidence in our
company and, as a result, the value of our common stock.
We have been and are required, pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, to furnish a report by management on,
among other things, the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting on an annual basis. This assessment
includes disclosure of any material weaknesses identified by our management in our internal control over financial
reporting. During the evaluation and testing process, if we identify one or more material weaknesses in our internal control
over financial reporting, we will be unable to assert that our internal controls are effective and would be required to disclose
any material weaknesses identified in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. While we have
established certain procedures and control over our financial reporting processes, we cannot assure you that these efforts
will prevent restatements of our financial statements in the future.
Our independent registered public accounting firm is also required, pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, to
report on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. For future reporting periods, our independent
registered public accounting firm may issue a report that is adverse in the event it is not satisfied with the level at which
our controls are documented, designed or operating. We may not be able to remediate any future material weaknesses, or
to complete our evaluation, testing and any required remediation in a timely fashion.
If we are unable to conclude that our internal control over financial reporting is effective, or if our independent registered
public accounting firm is unable to express an opinion that our internal controls over financial reporting are effective,
investors could lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, which could cause the price of
our common stock to decline, and we could be subject to sanctions or investigations by regulatory authorities, including
the SEC and Nasdaq. Failure to remediate any material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting, or to
maintain other effective control systems required of public companies, could also restrict our future access to the capital
markets.
Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock
Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market could cause our market price to
decline.
Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that these sales might
occur, could depress the market price of our common stock and could impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of
additional equity securities. We are unable to predict the effect that sales, particularly sales by our directors, executive
officers, and significant stockholders, may have on the prevailing market price of our common stock. Additionally, the
shares of common stock subject to outstanding options under our equity incentive plans and the shares reserved for future
issuance under our equity incentive plans, as well as shares issuable upon vesting of restricted stock awards, will become
eligible for sale in the public market in the future, subject to certain legal and contractual limitations.
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If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or reports about our business, or publish negative reports
about our business, our share price and trading volume could decline.
The trading market for our common stock depends, in part, on the research and reports that securities or industry analysts
publish about us or our business. We do not have any control over these analysts. If our financial performance fails to meet
analyst estimates or one or more of the analysts who cover us downgrade our shares or change their opinion of our shares,
our share price would likely decline. If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of our company or fail to regularly
publish reports on us, we could lose visibility in the financial markets, which could cause our share price or trading volume
to decline.
We do not intend to pay dividends for the foreseeable future and, as a result, your ability to achieve a return on your
investment will depend on appreciation in the price of our common stock.
We do not intend to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. We anticipate that we will retain all of our future
earnings for use in the development of our business and for general corporate purposes. Any determination to pay dividends
in the future will be at the discretion of our board of directors and subject to the restrictions on paying dividends in our
Revolving Credit Facility which expires in June 2021 and any future indebtedness. Accordingly, investors must rely on
sales of their common stock after price appreciation, which may never occur, as the only way to realize any future gains
on their investments.
Mr. Soloway, members of management and certain directors own a significant portion of our outstanding voting
stock and exert significant influence over our business and affairs.
Richard L. Soloway, our Chief Executive Officer, members of management and our board of directors (“Board”)
beneficially own approximately 36% of our common stock. Their significant ownership will, for the foreseeable future,
enable them to control our management and affairs, and most matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election
of directors, financing activities, a merger or sale of our assets and other significant corporate transactions. They may, in
their discretion, elect to exercise these or similar rights at any time. Furthermore, the Company has established a staggered
Board where the election of only one class of directors can be held at each annual meeting. This concentration of ownership,
as well as a staggered or classified Board, could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in our control or
otherwise discouraging a potential acquirer from attempting to obtain control of us, which in turn could materially
adversely affect our stock price and may prevent attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our Board or
management. The Company filed a Registration Statement on Form S-3 pursuant to which Mr. Soloway may sell up to
2,568,032 shares over the next three years. If all such shares are sold, members of management and our Board will continue
to beneficially own approximately 22% of our common stock and will likely to continue to be able exert the control
described above.
ITEM 1B: UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
Not applicable.
ITEM 2: PROPERTIES.
The Company owns executive offices and production and warehousing facilities at 333 Bayview Avenue, Amityville, New
York. This facility consists of a fully-utilized building of approximately 95,000 square foot on a six acre plot. This sixacre plot provides the Company with space for expansion of office, manufacturing and storage capacities. These facilities
are pledged as security in the Company’s credit facilities with its primary bank.
The Company's foreign subsidiary located in the Dominican Republic, Napco DR, S.A., owns a building of approximately
180,000 square feet of production and warehousing space in the Dominican Republic. That subsidiary also leases the land
associated with this building under a 99-year lease expiring in the year 2092 at an annual cost of approximately $288,000.
As of June 30, 2020, a majority of the Company's products were manufactured at this facility, utilizing U.S. quality control
standards.
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Management believes that these facilities are more than adequate to meet the needs of the Company in the foreseeable
future.
ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.
There are no pending or threatened material legal proceedings to which NAPCO or its subsidiaries or any of their property
is subject. The Company is party to an IRS proceeding described under Income Taxes and in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.
.
In the normal course of business, the Company is a party to claims and/or litigation. Management believes that the
settlement of such claims and/or litigation, considered in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company's financial position and results of operations.
ITEM 4: MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE.
Not Applicable.

PART II
ITEM 5: MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.
Principal Market
NAPCO's Common Stock is traded on the NASDAQ Stock Market, Global Market System, under the symbol NSSC.
Approximate Number of Security Holders
The number of holders of record of NAPCO's Common Stock as of September 10, 2020 was 71 (such number does not
include beneficial owners of stock held in nominee name).
Dividend Information
NAPCO has declared no cash dividends during the past two years with respect to its Common Stock.
Equity Compensation Plan Information as of June 30, 2020
NUMBER OF SECURITIES
TO BE ISSUED UPON
EXERCISE OF
OUTSTANDING OPTIONS
(a)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE
EXERCISE PRICE OF
OUTSTANDING
OPTIONS
(b)

NUMBER OF SECURITIES
REMAINING AVAILABLE FOR
FUTURE ISSUANCE (EXCLUDING
SECURITIES REFLECTED IN
COLUMN (a)
(c)

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders:

178,240

$19.53

781,960 (1)

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders:

__

__

__

178,240

$19.53

781,960 (1)

PLAN CATEGORY

Total
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PART II
ITEM 5: MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.
Principal Market
NAPCO's Common Stock is traded on the NASDAQ Stock Market, Global Market System, under the symbol NSSC.
Approximate Number of Security Holders
The number of holders of record of NAPCO's Common Stock as of September 10, 2020 was 71 (such number does not
include beneficial owners of stock held in nominee name).
Dividend Information
NAPCO has declared no cash dividends during the past two years with respect to its Common Stock.
Equity Compensation Plan Information as of June 30, 2020
NUMBER OF SECURITIES
TO BE ISSUED UPON
EXERCISE OF
OUTSTANDING OPTIONS
(a)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE
EXERCISE PRICE OF
OUTSTANDING
OPTIONS
(b)

NUMBER OF SECURITIES
REMAINING AVAILABLE FOR
FUTURE ISSUANCE (EXCLUDING
SECURITIES REFLECTED IN
COLUMN (a)
(c)

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders:

178,240

$19.53

781,960 (1)

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders:

__

__

__

178,240

$19.53

781,960 (1)

PLAN CATEGORY

Total

(1) In May 2020, the stockholders approved the 2020 Non-Employee Stock Option Plan which authorizes the granting
of awards, the exercise of which would allow up to an aggregate of 50,000 shares of the Company's common
stock to be acquired by the holders of such awards. In December 2018, the stockholders approved the 2018 NonEmployee Stock Option Plan which authorizes the granting of awards, the exercise of which would allow up to
an aggregate of 50,000 shares of the Company's common stock to be acquired by the holders of such awards. In
December 2012, the stockholders approved the 2012 Employee Stock Option Plan which authorizes the granting
of awards, the exercise of which would allow up to an aggregate of 950,000 shares of the Company's common
stock to be acquired by the holders of such awards. In December 2012, the stockholders also approved the 2012
Non-Employee Stock Option Plan which authorizes the granting of awards, the exercise of which would allow
up to an aggregate of 50,000 shares of the Company's common stock to be acquired by the holders of such awards.
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ITEM 6: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.
The table below summarizes selected financial information. For further information, refer to the audited consolidated
financial statements and the notes thereto beginning on page FS-1 of this report.
Fiscal Year Ended and at June 30

(In thousands, except share and per share data)

2020(5)

2019 (4)

2018

2017

2016

$101,359

$102,932

$91,746

$87,374

$82,513

Gross Profit (3)

43,592

43,890

37,995

36,301

33,753

Income from Operations
Net Income

10,813
8,520

13,466
12,223

8,414
7,649

6,378
5,599

6,323
5,773

Net cash flows provided by
operating activities

10,305

8,653

7,864

2,448

9,160

Net cash flows used in investing
activities

(1,615)

(1,988)

(1,280)

(1,414)

(693)

1,530

(3,945)

(4,730)

(1,385)

(7,008)

Basic

$0.46

$0.66

$0.41

$0.30

$0.31

Diluted

$0.46

$0.66

$0.41

$0.30

$0.31

Basic

18,444,000

18,574,000

18,788,000

18,809,000

18,874,000

Diluted

18,493,000

18,624,000

18,825,000

18,854,000

18,894,000

$.00

$.00

$.00

$.00

$.00

Working capital (2)

$61,046

$51,083

$44,301

$40,798

$36,888

Total assets

105,838

85,908

73,269

70,862

64,769

2,110

--

--

3,500

4,500

77,901

71,172

63,453

56,889

51,273

Statement of earnings data:
Net Sales

Cash Flow Data:

Net cash flows provided by (used
in) financing activities
Per Share Data:
Net earnings per common share:

Weighted average common shares
outstanding:

Cash Dividends declared per
common share (1)
Balance sheet data:

Long-term debt
Stockholders' equity
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)

The Company has never paid a cash dividend on its common stock.
Working capital is calculated by deducting Current Liabilities from Current Assets.
Prior period balances have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.
Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09 was adopted on July 1, 2018, which resulted in an increase in sales allowance
reserves (i.e. refund liabilities) by a net of $1,627,000 and increase in other assets (i.e. return related assets) by a net of $716,000.
See Footnote 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (ASU 2016-02) was adopted on July 1, 2019. Adoption of the new standard resulted in the
recording of an operating ROU asset and lease liabilities of approximately $7.7 million. See Footnote 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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ITEM 7: MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS.
Overview
NAPCO is one of the leading manufacturers and designers of high-tech electronic security devices, as well as a leading
provider of school safety solutions. We offer a diversified array of security products, encompassing access control systems,
door-locking products, intrusion and fire alarm systems and video surveillance products. These products are used for
commercial, residential, institutional, industrial and governmental applications, and are sold worldwide principally to
independent distributors, dealers and installers of security equipment. We have experienced significant growth in recent
years, primarily driven by fast growing recurring service revenues generated from wireless communication services for
intrusion and fire alarm systems, as well as our school security products that are designed to meet the increasing needs to
enhance school security as a result of on-campus shooting and violence in the U.S.
Since 1969, NAPCO has established a heritage and proven record in the professional security community for reliably
delivering both advanced technology and high quality security solutions, building many of the industry’s best-known
brands, such as NAPCO Security Systems, Alarm Lock, Continental Access, Marks USA, and other popular product lines:
including Gemini and F64-Series hardwire/wireless intrusion systems and iSee Video internet video solutions. We are also
dedicated to developing innovative technology and producing the next generation of reliable security solutions that utilize
remote communications and wireless networks, including our StarLink, iBridge, and more recently the iSecure product
lines. Today, millions of businesses, institutions, homes, and people around the globe are protected by products from the
NAPCO Group of Companies.
Our net sales were $101.4 million and $102.9 million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The
changes of our net sales during these periods were driven primarily by increased sales of our products in the recurring
revenue business as offset by a 34% decrease in sales of hardware in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020 as compared to the
same period a year ago. This decrease was due primarily to the economic effects of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
related closures mandated by federal and state governments. Our net income was $8.5 million and $12.2 million for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The decrease in net income during this period was due primarily
to the COVID-19 impact described above as partially offset by the growth of our recurring revenue business,
implementation of cost-reduction measures.
Economic and Other Factors
We are subject to the effects of general economic and market conditions. In the event that the U.S. or international
economic conditions deteriorate, our revenue, profit and cash-flow levels could be materially adversely affected in future
periods. In the event of such deterioration, many of our current or potential future customers may experience serious cash
flow problems and as a result may, modify, delay or cancel purchases of our products. Additionally, customers may not
be able to pay, or may delay payment of, accounts receivable that are owed to us. If such events do occur, they may result
in our fixed and semi-variable expenses becoming too high in relation to our revenues and cash flows.
Seasonality
The Company's fiscal year begins on July 1 and ends on June 30. Historically, the end users of the Company’s products
want to install its products prior to the summer; therefore sales of its products historically peak in the period April 1 through
June 30, the Company's fiscal fourth quarter, and are reduced in the period July 1 through September 30, the Company's
fiscal first quarter. In addition, demand for our products is affected by the housing and construction markets. Deterioration
of the current economic conditions may also affect this trend.
Our fourth quarter of fiscal 2020 reflects the challenging business environment resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic.
The COVID-19 pandemic has caused difficulties for security equipment professionals getting access to both commercial
and residential installation sites. The Company believes this access issue is an industry-wide issue related to COVID-19
and not reflective of the loss of any market share unique to the Company or any long-term negative reflection of the postpandemic vibrancy of the security industry as a whole.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The Company's significant accounting policies are fully described in Note 1 to the Company's consolidated financial
statements included in its 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K. Management believes the following critical accounting
policies, among others, affect its more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of its consolidated
financial statements.
Net Sales
The Company is engaged in one major line of business: the development, manufacture, and distribution of security
products, encompassing access control systems, door security products, intrusion and fire alarm systems, alarm
communication services, and video surveillance products for commercial and residential use. The Company also provides
wireless communication service for intrusion and fire alarm systems on a monthly basis. These products are used for
commercial, residential, institutional, industrial and governmental applications, and are sold worldwide principally to
independent distributors, dealers and installers of security equipment. Sales to unaffiliated customers are primarily shipped
from the United States. The Company has customers worldwide with major concentrations in North America.
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.
For product sales the Company typically transfers control at a point in time upon shipment or delivery of the product. For
monthly communication services the Company satisfies its performance obligation as the services are rendered and
therefore recognizes revenue over the monthly period.
Typically timing of revenue recognition coincides with the timing of invoicing to the customers, at which time the
Company has an unconditional right to consideration. As such, the Company typically records a receivable when revenue
is recognized.
The contract with the customer states the final terms of the sale, including the description, quantity, and price of each
product purchased. Payment for product sales is typically due within 30 and 180 days of the delivery date. Payment for
monthly communication services is billed on a monthly basis and is typically due at the beginning of the month of service.
The Company provides limited standard warranty for defective products, usually for a period of 24 to 36 months. The
Company accepts returns for such defective products as well as for other limited circumstances. The Company also
provides rebates to customers for meeting specified purchasing targets and other coupons or credits in limited
circumstances. The Company establishes reserves for the estimated returns, rebates and credits and measures such variable
consideration based on the expected value method using an analysis of historical data. Changes to the estimated variable
consideration in subsequent periods are not material.
The Company analyzes sales returns and is able to make reasonable and reliable estimates of product returns based on the
Company’s past history. Estimates for sales returns are based on several factors including actual returns and based on
expected return data communicated to it by its customers. Accordingly, the Company believes that its historical returns
analysis is an accurate basis for its allowance for sales returns. Actual results could differ from those estimates. As a
percentage of gross sales, sales returns, rebates and allowances were 9% and 8% for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020
and 2019, respectively.
Concentration of Credit Risk
An entity is more vulnerable to concentrations of credit risk if it is exposed to risk of loss greater than it would have had
if it mitigated its risk through diversification of customers. Such risks of loss manifest themselves differently, depending
on the nature of the concentration, and vary in significance. The Company had one customer with an accounts receivable
balance that comprised 24% and 19% of the Company’s accounts receivable at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Sales
to this customer did not exceed 10% of net sales during fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Sales to this customer comprised
10% of net sales during fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The Company had another customer with an accounts receivable
balance that comprised 10% of the Company’s accounts receivable at June 30, 2020. Sales to this customer did not exceed
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10% of net sales in either of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. The Company had another customer with an
accounts receivable balance that comprised 10% of the Company’s accounts receivable at June 30, 2019. Sales to this
customer did not exceed 10% of net sales in either of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.
In the ordinary course of business, we have established a reserve for doubtful accounts and customer deductions in the
amount of $326,000 and $88,000 as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Our reserve for doubtful accounts is a
subjective critical estimate that has a direct impact on reported net earnings. This reserve is based upon the evaluation of
accounts receivable agings, specific exposures and historical or anticipated events.
Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value, with cost being determined on the first-in, first-out
(FIFO) method. The reported net value of inventory includes finished saleable products, work-in-process and raw materials
that will be sold or used in future periods. Inventory costs include raw materials, direct labor and overhead. The Company’s
overhead expenses are applied based, in part, upon estimates of the proportion of those expenses that are related to
procuring and storing raw materials as compared to the manufacture and assembly of finished products. These proportions,
the method of their application, and the resulting overhead included in ending inventory, are based in part on subjective
estimates and actual results could differ from those estimates.
In addition, the Company records an inventory obsolescence reserve, which represents the difference between the cost of
the inventory and its estimated realizable value, based on various product sales projections. This reserve is calculated using
an estimated obsolescence percentage applied to the inventory based on age, historical trends, requirements to support
forecasted sales, and the ability to find alternate applications of its raw materials and to convert finished product into
alternate versions of the same product to better match customer demand. There is inherent professional judgment and
subjectivity made by both production and engineering members of management in determining the estimated obsolescence
percentage. In addition, and as necessary, the Company may establish specific reserves for future known or anticipated
events. The Company also regularly reviews the period over which its inventories will be converted to sales. Any
inventories expected to convert to sales beyond 12 months from the balance sheet date are classified as non-current.
Intangible Assets
Impairment of Long-lived Assets – The Company reviews its long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset
group to future net undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset group. If such assets are considered to
be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds the fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value
less costs to sell. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company has determined that no impairment of long-lived assets
exists.
The Company evaluates its indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment at least on an annual basis and will evaluate
them earlier if there are indicators of a potential impairment. Those intangible assets that are classified as other intangibles
with indefinite lives are not amortized. Impairment testing is performed in two steps: (i) the Company determines if there
is impairment by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying value, and (ii) if there is impairment, the
Company measures the amount of impairment loss by comparing the implied fair value of intangible assets with the
carrying amount of the intangible assets. The Company has concluded that no impairment of intangible assets occurred
during the year ended June 30, 2019. During the 4th quarter of fiscal 2020, the Company determined that its indefinitelived intangible asset relating to its Marks USA I subsidiary trade-name was impaired. Accordingly, the Company recorded
an impairment charge of $1,852,000 and as a result concluded that the asset no longer was considered to have an indefinitelife and reclassified the remaining balance of the underlying asset from indefinite-lived to a long-lived asset with a
remaining useful life of 20 years as of June 30, 2020.
Income Taxes
The Company has identified the United States and New York State as its major tax jurisdictions. Fiscal year 2017 is
currently under audit by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”). Fiscal year 2018 and forward years are still open for
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examination. In addition, the Company has a wholly-owned subsidiary which operates in a Free Zone in the Dominican
Republic (“DR”) and is exempt from DR income tax.
The Company was audited by the IRS for the fiscal year 2016. In July 2019, the Company received Form 4549-A, Income
Tax Examination Changes from the IRS proposing an adjustment to income for the fiscal 2016 tax year regarding deemed
dividends based on its interpretation of Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) Section 956 arising from the intercompany balances
on the books of the Company. In August 2019, the Company filed a formal protest with the IRS requesting an opportunity
to appeal the examination findings to the Appeals Office. During fiscal year 2020, the Company settled the issue at
Appeals. There is a provision booked for the federal and state impact of $762,000 and $70,000, respectively.
The Company is currently under audit for the fiscal year 2017. The IRS has raised the IRC Section 956 issue that was
settled during the fiscal year 2016 audit. The Company strongly believes that the position of the IRS with regard to this
matter is inconsistent with the provisions of IRC Section 956 and that the Company is willing to go to court, if necessary
to argue its position. During fiscal 2020, a provision for the incremental tax liability of $657,000 and interest of 66,000
was recorded for the 2017 and 2018 fiscal years.
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Company recognized a net income tax expense of $2,284,000. During the year
ending June 30, 2020 the Company increased its reserve for uncertain income tax positions by $824,000. The Company’s
practice is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense and accrued income
taxes. As of June 30, 2020, the Company had accrued interest totaling $83,000 and $866,000 of unrecognized net tax
benefits that, if recognized, would favorably affect the Company’s effective income tax rate in any future period. The
Company claims research and development (“R&D”) tax credits on eligible research and development expenditures. The
R&D tax credits are recognized as a reduction to income tax expense.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred income tax expense
represents the change during the period in the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities. Deferred tax assets are reduced
by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company measures and recognizes the tax implications of positions taken or
expected to be taken in its tax returns on an ongoing basis.
Leases
Effective July 1, 2019, the Company adopted the new lease accounting standard using the modified retrospective transition
option of applying the new standard at the adoption date. In addition, we elected the package of practical expedients
permitted under the transition guidance within the new standard, which among other things, allowed us to not reassess (1)
whether any expired or existing contracts are or contain leases, (2) lease classification for any expired or existing leases,
and (3) initial direct costs for any existing leases. Adoption of the new standard resulted in the recording of an operating
ROU asset and lease liabilities of approximately $7.7 million. Given the length of the lease term, the right-of-use asset and
corresponding liability assume a weighted discount rate as disclosed below. A change in the rate utilized could have a
material effect on the amounts reported. Financial positions for reporting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2019 are
presented under new guidance, while prior period amounts are not adjusted and continue to be reported in accordance with
previous guidance.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
The Company's cash on hand as of June 30, 2020 combined with proceeds from operating activities during fiscal 2020
were adequate to meet the Company's capital expenditure and financing needs during fiscal 2020. The Company's primary
internal source of liquidity is the cash flow generated from operations. The primary source of external financing is a
revolving credit facility of $11,000,000 (the “Revolving Credit Facility”) which expires in June 2021. As of June 30, 2020,
$0 was outstanding under this revolving line of credit. The Company has not drawn on this line of credit since June of
2018. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020 the Company applied for and received a loan of $3,904,000 under the Federal
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government’s Payroll Protection Program (“PPP”) administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration (“SBA”).
Pursuant to the CARES Act, the loan may be forgiven by the SBA. The Company anticipates applying for forgiveness of
these loans during fiscal 2021. The amount of loan forgiveness is determined by and is subject to the sole approval of the
SBA. As of June 30, 2020, the Company's unused sources of funds consisted principally of $18,248,000 in cash and cash
equivalents and $11,000,000 unused balance available under its revolving line of credit.
The Revolving Credit Facility contains various restrictions and covenants including, among others, restrictions on payment
of dividends, restrictions on borrowings and compliance with certain financial ratios, as defined in the restated agreement.
During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Company utilized a portion of its cash on hand at June 30, 2019 ($4,069,000 of
$8,028,000) to repurchase outstanding shares of its stock ($2,454,000) and purchase property, plant and equipment
($1,615,000).
As of June 30, 2020, the Company’s primary outside source of financing consisted of the Revolving Credit Facility of
$11,000,000 which expires in June 2021 and the PPP loans which expire in April and May of 2022. As of June 30, 2020
and 2019, there were no outstanding balances under the Revolving Credit Facility and $3,904,000 was outstanding under
the PPP loans. These facilities are described more fully in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Company believes its current working capital, anticipated cash flows from operations and its Revolving Credit
Agreement will be sufficient to fund the Company’s operations through at least the next twelve months.
The Company takes into consideration several factors in measuring its liquidity, including the ratios set forth below:

Current Ratio
Sales to Receivables
Total debt to equity

2020
4.5 to 1
4.4 to 1
0.1 to 1

As of June 30,

2019
4.6 to 1
4.0 to 1
0.0 to 1

As of June 30, 2020, the Company had no material commitments for capital expenditures or inventory purchases other
than purchase orders issued in the normal course of business. On April 26, 1993, the Company's foreign subsidiary
entered into a 99-year land lease of approximately 4 acres of land in the Dominican Republic, on which the Company’s
principle manufacturing facility is located, at an annual rent of approximately $288,000.
Working Capital. Working capital increased by $19,963,000 to $61,046,000 at June 30, 2020 from $51,083,000 at June
30, 2019. Working capital is calculated by deducting Current Liabilities from Current Assets.
Accounts Receivable. Accounts Receivable decreased by $3,038,000 to $22,932,000 at June 30, 2020 as compared to
$25,970,000 at June 30, 2019. The decrease in Accounts Receivable was due primarily to a decrease in hardware sales
for the quarter ended June 30, 2020 as compared to the same quarter a year ago.
Inventories. Inventories, which include both current and non-current portions, increased by $6,917,000 to $41,755,000 at
June 30, 2020 as compared to $34,838,000 at June 30, 2019. The increase was due primarily to the Company building
up levels of its recently introduced and soon to be introduced new products.
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses. Accounts payable and accrued expenses, not including income taxes payable,
increased by $648,000 to $14,472,000 as of June 30, 2020 as compared to $13,824,000 at June 30, 2019. This increase
is primarily due to the increase in inventory as described above.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Company does not maintain any off-balance sheet arrangements.
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Results of Operations
Fiscal 2020 Compared to Fiscal 2019
Fiscal year ended June 30, (dollars in thousands)

Net sales
Gross profit
Gross profit as a % of net sales
Research and development
Selling, general and
administrative
Selling, general and
administrative as a % of net sales
Impairment of intangible asset
Income from operations
Interest expense, net
Provision for income taxes
Net income

% Increase/
(decrease)

2020

2019

$101,359
43,592
43.0%
7,257

$102,932
43,890
42.6%
7,212

(1.5)%
(0.7)%
0.9%
0.6%

23,670

23,212

2.0%

23.4%
1,852
10,813
9
2,284
8,520

22.6%
13,466
21
1,222
12,223

3.5%
(19.7)%
(57.1)%
86.9%
(30.3)%

Net sales in fiscal 2020 decreased by $1,573,000 to $101,359,000 as compared to $102,932,000 in fiscal 2019. The
decrease in net sales was primarily due to decreased sales of the Company’s Alarm Lock brand door-locking products
($2,565,000), Marks brand door-locking products ($5,258,000), and Continental brand access control products ($542,000)
as partially offset by increased sales of the Company’s recurring alarm communication services ($6,608,000) and Napco
brand intrusion products ($200,000). The Company’s hardware sales were negatively impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic, which has caused difficulties for security equipment professionals getting access to both commercial and
residential installation sites. The Company believes this access issue is an industry-wide issue related to COVID-19 and
not reflective of the loss of any market share unique to the Company or any long-term negative reflection of the postpandemic vibrancy of the security industry as a whole.
The Company's gross profit decreased by $298,000 to $43,592,000 or 43.0% of net sales in fiscal 2020 as compared to
$43,890,000 or 42.6% of net sales in fiscal 2019. Gross profit on hardware sales was $23,380,000 or 30.1% of net hardware
sales in fiscal 2020 and $30,265,000 or 35.4% of net hardware sales, in fiscal 2019. Gross profit on service revenues was
$19,712,000 or 82.0% of net service revenues in fiscal 2020 and $13,625,000 or 78.2% of net service revenues, in fiscal
2019. Gross profit was primarily affected by the decrease in hardware sales as discussed above as partially offset by
increased service revenues.
Research and Development expenses remained relatively constant at $7,257,000 in fiscal 2020 as compared to $7,212,000
in fiscal 2019.
Selling, general and administrative expenses for fiscal 2020 increased by $458,000 to $23,670,000 as compared to
$23,212,000 in fiscal 2019. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales increased to 23.4%
in fiscal 2020 from 22.6% in fiscal 2019. The increase in dollars resulted primarily from increases in employee
compensation. The increase as a percentage of sales was primarily the result of the decrease in net sales as described above
and the increased employee compensation expenses.
At the conclusion of fiscal 2020, the Company determined that its indefinite-lived intangible asset relating to its Marks
USA I subsidiary trade-name was impaired. Accordingly, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $1,852,000 and
reclassified the remaining balance of the underlying asset from indefinite-lived to a long-lived asset with a remaining
useful life of 20 years as of June 30, 2020. There was no impairment charge for the year ended June 30, 2019.
Interest expense for fiscal 2020 remained relatively constant at $9,000 as compared to $21,000 for the same period a year
ago.
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The Company’s provision for income taxes for fiscal 2020 increased by $1,062,000 to $2,284,000 as compared to
$1,222,000 for the same period a year ago. The Company’s effective tax rate increased to 21% for fiscal 2020 as compared
to 9% for fiscal 2019. The increase in the Company’s effective tax rate resulted from the resolution of an IRS audit of the
Company’s 2016 fiscal year, resulting in an additional provision of $1,555,000.
Net income for fiscal 2020 decreased by $3,703,000 to $8,520,000 as compared to $12,223,000 in fiscal 2019. This resulted
primarily from the items discussed above.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Annual Report on Form 10-K and the documents we incorporate by reference contain forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and Section 21E of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. All statements, other than statements of historical
fact, included or incorporated in this prospectus regarding our strategy, future operations, clinical trials, collaborations,
intellectual property, cash resources, financial position, future revenues, projected costs, prospects, plans, and objectives
of management are forward-looking statements. The words “believes,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” “plans,” “expects,”
“intends,” “may,” “could,” “should,” “potential,” “likely,” “projects,” “continue,” “will,” “schedule,” “would,” and similar
expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements, although not all forward-looking statements contain these
identifying words. We cannot guarantee that we actually will achieve the plans, intentions or expectations disclosed in our
forward-looking statements and you should not place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements. These forwardlooking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors, which may be beyond our control,
and which may cause our actual results, performance, or achievements to be materially different from future results,
performance, or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. There are a number of important
factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those indicated or implied by forward-looking
statements. See “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2020 for more information.
These factors and the other cautionary statements made in this prospectus and the documents we incorporate by reference
should be read as being applicable to all related forward-looking statements whenever they appear in this prospectus and
the documents we incorporate by reference. In addition, any forward-looking statements represent our estimates only as
of the date that this prospectus is filed with the SEC and should not be relied upon as representing our estimates as of any
subsequent date. We do not assume any obligation to update any forward-looking statements. We disclaim any intention
or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise, except as may be required by law.

ITEM 7A: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
The Company's principal financial instrument is long-term debt (consisting of a revolving credit facility) that provides for
interest based on the prime rate or LIBOR as described in the agreement and the PPP loans which provides for interest at
1%. The Company is affected by market risk exposure primarily through the effect of changes in interest rates on amounts
payable by the Company under these credit facilities.
All foreign sales transactions by the Company are denominated in U.S. dollars. As such, the Company has shifted foreign
currency exposure onto its foreign customers. As a result, if exchange rates move against foreign customers, the Company
could experience difficulty collecting unsecured accounts receivable, the cancellation of existing orders or the loss of future
orders. The foregoing could materially adversely affect the Company's business, financial condition and results of
operations. We are also exposed to foreign currency risk relative to expenses incurred in Dominican Pesos ("RD$"), the
local currency of the Company's production facility in the Dominican Republic. The result of a 10% strengthening or
weakening in the U.S. dollar to the RD$ would result in an annual increase or decrease in income from operations of
approximately $700,000.
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ITEM 8: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.
a. Financial Statements: Financial statements required pursuant to this Item are presented on pages FS-1 through FS-25
of this report as follows:
NAPCO SECURITY TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Page
Management Report on Internal Control

FS-1

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

FS-2

Consolidated Financial Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2020 and 2019

FS-4

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

FS-5

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

FS-6

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

FS-7

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FS-8
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Management Report on Internal Control
Management has prepared and is responsible for our consolidated financial statements and related notes. Management is
also responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Napco Technologies, Inc. (the
“Company”) internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the Company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with the authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and
(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements prepared for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
Management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework in Internal Control – Integrated Framework (2013) as issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management determined that as of June 30, 2020,
the Company did maintain effective internal control over financial reporting.
The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2020 has been audited by Baker Tilly US
LLP (formerly Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP), an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their
report included herein.

FS-1
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the stockholders and board of directors of Napco Security Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries:
Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Napco Security Technologies, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(the "Company") as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows, for each of the two years in the period ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes (collectively referred to as
the "consolidated financial statements"). We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as
of June 30, 2020, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework: (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years
in the period ended June 30, 2020, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of June 30, 2020, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework: (2013) issued by
COSO.
Basis for Opinions
The Company’s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on the Company's consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB") and are required to be independent with respect to the Company
in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects.
Our audits of the financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks.
Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal
control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

FS-2

32

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
We have served as the Company's auditor since 2009.
/s/BAKER TILLY US LLP (FORMERLY BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE, LLP)
Melville, New York
September 15, 2020
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NAPCO SECURITY TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2020

June 30, 2019

(in thousands, except share data)

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $326
and $88 at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and other reserves
Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

$18,248

$8,028

22,932

25,970

35,231

2,049

Total Current Assets

Inventories - non-current
Intangible assets, net

65,455

8,088

7,694

5,116

Operating lease asset

7,395

Other assets

255

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Current portion of long-term debt

2,181

2,416

2,110

Deferred income taxes

112

Accrued income taxes

Long term operating lease liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

6,273
-

548

14,372
-

72

1,188

292

27,937

14,736

212

212

7,113

Total Liabilities

265

$5,135

17,414

Long term debt

-

$6,547

1,148

Total Current Liabilities

7,232

$85,908

1,794

Accrued income taxes

5,262

$105,838

5,744

Accrued salaries and wages

1,881

78,460

6,524

Property, plant and equipment, net

29,576

-

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share; 40,000,000 shares
authorized; 21,241,066 and 21,227,094 shares issued; and 18,347,351
and 18,477,874 shares outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital

17,766

17,103

Less: Treasury Stock, at cost (2,893,715 and 2,749,310 shares)

(19,521)

(17,067)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

$105,838

$85,908

Retained earnings

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

79,444
77,901

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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70,924
71,172

NAPCO SECURITY TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Fiscal Year ended June 30,

2020

2019

(in thousands, except for share and per share data)

Net sales:
Equipment sales
Service sales

$77,314
24,045

$85,505
17,427

101,359

102,932

53,434
4,333

55,240
3,802

57,767

59,042

43,592

43,890

Research and development
Selling, general, and administrative expenses
Impairment of intangible asset

7,257
23,670
1,852
32,779

7,212
23,212
30,424

Operating Income
Other expense:
Interest expense, net

10,813

13,466

9

21

Income before Provision for Income Taxes
Provision for Income Taxes

10,804
2,284

13,445
1,222

Net Income

$8,520

$12,223

Income per share:
Basic

$0.46

$0.66

$0.46

$0.66

18,444,000

18,574,000

18,493,000

18,624,000

Cost of sales:
Equipment related expenses
Service related expenses

Gross Profit

Diluted
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NAPCO SECURITY TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
(in thousands except for share data)
Common Stock

Balances at June 30, 2018
Implementation of ASC606
Repurchase of treasury
shares
Stock options exercised
Stock-based compensation
expense
Net income
Balances at June 30, 2019

Stock options exercised
Repurchase of treasury
shares
Stock-based compensation
expense
Net income
Balances at June 30, 2020

Number of
Shares
Issued

Treasury Stock

Amount

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Number of
Shares

Amount

Retained
Earnings

Total

21,204,327

$212

$16,890

(2,475,245)

$(13,069)

$59,420

$63,453

-

-

-

-

-

(719)

(719)

22,767

-

53

(274,065)
-

(3,998)
-

-

(3,998)
53

-

-

160
-

-

-

12,223

160
12,223

21,227,094

$212

$17,103

(2,749,310)

$(17,067)

$70,924

$71,172

-

-

-

(144,405)

(2,454)

-

(2,454)

-

-

583
-

-

-

8,520

583
8,520

21,241,066

$212

$17,766

(2,893,715)

$(19,521)

$79,444

$77,901

13,972

-

80

-

-

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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-

80

NAPCO SECURITY TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Year ended June 30,
2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment of intangible asset
Provision for doubtful accounts
Change to inventory obsolescence reserve
Deferred income taxes
Stock based compensation expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, accrued salaries
and wages, accrued income taxes
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term debt
Proceeds from stock option exercises
Cash paid for purchase of treasury stock
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Ending
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paid, net
Income taxes paid

Surrender of Common Shares

(in thousands)

$8,520

$12,223

1,495
1,852
238
(124)
40
583

1,409
(26)
(272)
755
160

2,800
(6,793)
(168)
-

(1,440)
(5,991)
318
(11)

1,862

1,528

10,305

8,653

(1,615)

(1,988)

(1,615)

(1,988)

3,904
80
(2,454)

53
(3,998)

1,530

(3,945)

10,220
8,028

2,720
5,308

$18,248

$8,028

$29

$23

$749

$262

-

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NAPCO SECURITY TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Business:
Napco Security Technologies, Inc (“NAPCO”, “the Company”, “we”) is one of the leading manufacturers and designers
of high-tech electronic security devices, as well as a leading provider of school safety solutions. We offer a diversified
array of security products, encompassing access control systems, door-locking products, intrusion and fire alarm systems
and video surveillance products. These products are used for commercial, residential, institutional, industrial and
governmental applications, and are sold worldwide principally to independent distributors, dealers and installers of security
equipment. We have experienced significant growth in recent years, primarily driven by fast growing recurring service
revenues generated from wireless communication services for intrusion and fire alarm systems, as well as our school
security products that are designed to meet the increasing needs to enhance school security as a result of on-campus
shooting and violence in the U.S.
The Company's fiscal year begins on July 1 and ends on June 30. Historically, the end users of the Company’s products
want to install its products prior to the summer; therefore sales of its products historically peak in the period April 1 through
June 30, the Company's fiscal fourth quarter, and are reduced in the period July 1 through September 30, the Company's
fiscal first quarter. In addition, demand for our products is affected by the housing and construction markets. Deterioration
of the current economic conditions may also affect this trend.
Our fourth quarter of fiscal 2020 reflects the challenging business environment resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic.
The COVID-19 pandemic has caused difficulties for security equipment professionals getting access to both commercial
and residential installation sites. The Company believes this access issue is an industry-wide issue related to COVID-19
and not reflective of the loss of any market share unique to the Company or any long-term negative reflection of the postpandemic vibrancy of the security industry as a whole.
Significant Accounting Policies:
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Napco Security Technologies, Inc. and all of its whollyowned subsidiaries. All inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Accounting Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent gains and losses at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Critical estimates include management's judgments associated with reserves for sales returns
and allowances, allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory reserves, valuation of intangible assets and income taxes.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the following classes of financial instruments were: Current
Assets and Current Liabilities - The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, certificates of deposits, current
receivables and payables and certain other short-term financial instruments approximate their fair value as of June 30, 2020
and 2019 due to their short-term maturities. Long-term debt and lease liabilities reflect fair value based on prevailing
market rates.
FS-8
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include approximately $460,000 of short-term time deposits at June 30, 2020 and 2019. The
Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
The Company has cash balances in banks in excess of the maximum amount insured by the FDIC and other international
agencies as of June 30, 2020 and 2019. The Company has not historically experienced any credit losses with balances in
excess of FDIC limits.
Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable is stated net of the reserves for doubtful accounts of $326,000 and $88,000 as of June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively. Our reserves for doubtful accounts are subjective critical estimates that have a direct impact on reported
net earnings. These reserves are based upon the evaluation of our accounts receivable aging, specific exposures, sales
levels and historical trends.
Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value, with cost being determined on the first-in, first-out
(FIFO) method. The reported net value of inventory includes finished saleable products, work-in-process and raw materials
that will be sold or used in future periods. Inventory costs include raw materials, direct labor and overhead. The Company’s
overhead expenses are applied based, in part, upon estimates of the proportion of those expenses that are related to
procuring and storing raw materials as compared to the manufacture and assembly of finished products. These proportions,
the method of their application, and the resulting overhead included in ending inventory, are based in part on subjective
estimates and actual results could differ from those estimates.
In addition, the Company records an inventory obsolescence reserve, which represents any excess of the cost of the
inventory over its estimated realizable value, based on various product sales projections. This reserve is calculated using
an estimated obsolescence percentage applied to the inventory based on age, historical trends, requirements to support
forecasted sales, and the ability to find alternate applications of its raw materials and to convert finished product into
alternate versions of the same product to better match customer demand. In addition, and as necessary, the Company may
establish specific reserves for future known or anticipated events. There is inherent professional judgment and subjectivity
made by both production and engineering members of management in determining the estimated obsolescence percentage.
The Company also regularly reviews the period over which its inventories will be converted to sales. Any inventories
expected to convert to sales beyond 12 months from the balance sheet date are classified as non-current.
Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs
are charged to expense as incurred; costs of major renewals and improvements are capitalized. At the time property and
equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the asset and
accumulated depreciation accounts and the profit or loss on such disposition is reflected in income.
Depreciation is recorded over the estimated service lives of the related assets using primarily the straight-line method.
Amortization of leasehold improvements is calculated by using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of
the asset or lease term, whichever is shorter.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets determined to have indefinite lives are not amortized but are tested for impairment at least annually.
Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized over their useful lives. Infinite-lived intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment at least annually at the Company’s fiscal year end of June 30 or more often whenever there is an indication
that the carrying amount may not be recovered.
The Company’s acquisition of substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of G. Marks Hardware, Inc. (“Marks”)
in August 2008 included intangible assets recorded at fair value on the date of acquisition. The customer relationships are
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amortized over their estimated useful lives of twenty years. The Marks trade name was deemed to have an indefinite life.
At the conclusion of fiscal 2020, the Company determined that the trade-name was impaired. Accordingly, the Company
recorded an impairment charge of $1,852,000 and reclassified the remaining balance of the underlying asset from
indefinite-lived to a long-lived asset with a remaining useful life of 20 years as of June 30, 2020.
Changes in intangible assets are as follows (in thousands):

Customer relationships
Trade name

June 30, 2020

Carrying
value

Accumulated
amortization

$9,800
4,048
$13,848

$ (8,732)
-$ (8,732)

Net book
value
$1,068
4,048
$5,116

Carrying
value
$9,800
5,900
$15,700

June 30, 2019
Accumulated
amortization

$ (8,468)
-$ (8,468)

Net book
value
$1,332
5,900
$7,232

Amortization expense for intangible assets subject to amortization was approximately $264,000 and $313,000 for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Amortization expense for each of the next five fiscal years is estimated
to be as follows: 2021 - $425,000; 2022 - $390,000; 2023 - $362,000; 2024 - $336,000; and 2025 - $315,000. The weighted
average remaining amortization period for intangible assets was 17.5 years and 9.1 years at June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.
Long-Lived Assets
Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets in question may not be recoverable. Impairment would be recorded in circumstances where
undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by an asset are less than the carrying value of that asset.
Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”), Topic 606, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, which the Company adopted effective July 1, 2018. Accordingly, the Company recognizes
revenue when its customers obtain control of its products or services, in an amount that reflects the consideration that the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods and services. See Note 2 – Revenue Recognition for additional
accounting policies and transition disclosures.
Advertising and Promotional Costs
Advertising and promotional costs are included in "Selling, General and Administrative" expenses in the consolidated
statements of income and are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
was $1,722,000 and $2,047,000, respectively.
Research and Development Costs
Research and development costs incurred by the Company are charged to expense as incurred and are included in operating
expenses in the consolidated statements of income. Company-sponsored research and development expense for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $7,257,000 and $7,212,000, respectively.
Income Taxes
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred income tax expense
represents the change during the period in the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities. Deferred tax assets are reduced
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by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company measures and recognizes the tax implications of positions taken or
expected to be taken in its tax returns on an ongoing basis.
Net Income per Share
Basic net income per common share (Basic EPS) is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding. Diluted net income per common share (Diluted EPS) is computed by dividing net income by
the weighted average number of common shares and dilutive common share equivalents and convertible securities then
outstanding.
The following provides a reconciliation of information used in calculating the per share amounts for the fiscal years ended
June 30 (in thousands, except per share data):
Net Income
2020
2019
Basic EPS
Effect of
Dilutive
Securities:

$8,520

$12,223

18,444

18,574

$0.46

--

--
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--

--

$8,520

$12,223

18,493

18,624

$0.46

$0.66

Stock Options
Diluted EPS

Net Income per
Share
2020
2019

Weighted Average Shares
2020
2019

$0.66

Options to purchase 38,819 and 2,957 shares of common stock were excluded for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively, and were not included in the computation of Diluted EPS because their inclusion would be
anti-dilutive. These options were still outstanding at the end of the respective periods.
Stock-Based Compensation
The Company has established three share incentive programs as discussed in Note 8.
Stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as
expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Determining the fair value of share-based awards at the grant date
requires assumptions and judgments about expected volatility and forfeiture rates, among other factors.
Stock-based compensation costs of $583,000 and $160,000 were recognized for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively.
Foreign Currency
The Company has determined the functional currency of all foreign subsidiaries is the U.S. Dollar. All foreign operations
are considered a direct and integral part or extension of the Company's operations. The day-to-day operations of all foreign
subsidiaries are dependent on the economic environment of the U.S. Dollar. Therefore, no realized and unrealized gains
and losses associated with foreign currency translation are recorded for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 or 2019.
Comprehensive Income
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company's operations did not give rise to material items includable
in comprehensive income, which were not already included in net income. Accordingly, the Company's comprehensive
income approximates its net income for all periods presented.
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Segment Reporting
The Company’s reportable operating segments are determined based on the Company's management approach. The
management approach is based on the way that the chief operating decision maker organizes the segments within an
enterprise for making operating decisions and assessing performance. The Company's results of operations are reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker on a consolidated basis and the Company operates in only one segment. The
Company has presented required geographical data in Note 12.
Shipping and Handling Sales and Costs
The Company records the amount billed to customers for shipping and handling in net sales ($452,000 and $430,000 in
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively) and classifies the costs associated with these sales in cost of
sales ($1,034,000 and $1,115,000 in the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively).
Leases
Effective July 1, 2019, the Company adopted the new lease accounting standard using the modified retrospective transition
option of applying the new standard at the adoption date. In addition, we elected the package of practical expedients
permitted under the transition guidance within the new standard, which among other things, allowed us to not reassess (1)
whether any expired or existing contracts are or contain leases, (2) lease classification for any expired or existing leases,
and (3) initial direct costs for any existing leases. Adoption of the new standard resulted in the recording of an operating
ROU asset and lease liabilities of approximately $7.7 million. Given the length of the lease term, the right-of-use asset and
corresponding liability assume a weighted discount rate as disclosed below. A change in the rate utilized could have a
material effect on the amounts reported. Financial positions for reporting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2019 are
presented under new guidance, while prior period amounts are not adjusted and continue to be reported in accordance with
previous guidance. See Note 11 – Commitments and Contingencies; Leases for additional accounting policies and
transition disclosures.
Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Standards
On July 1, 2019, we adopted Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (ASU 2016-02), as amended,
which supersedes the lease accounting guidance under Topic 840, and generally requires lessees to recognize operating
and financing lease liabilities and corresponding right-of-use assets on the balance sheet and to provide enhanced
disclosures surrounding the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leasing arrangements. We adopted
the new guidance using the modified retrospective transition approach by applying the new standard to all leases existing
at the date of initial application and not restating comparative periods. The most significant impact was the recognition of
ROU assets and lease liabilities for operating leases. For information regarding the impact of Topic 842 adoption,
see Significant Accounting Policies - Leases and Note 11- Leases.
NOTE 2 – Revenue Recognition and Contracts with Customers
Adoption
On July 1, 2018, the Company adopted new guidance on revenue from contracts with customers using the modified
retrospective method applied to contracts that were not completed as of July 1, 2018. Results for reporting periods
beginning after July 1, 2018 are presented under the new guidance, while prior period amounts are not adjusted and
continue to be reported in accordance with previous guidance.
The Company recorded a net decrease to opening retained earnings of approximately $719,000 (net of tax benefit of
$191,000) as of July 1, 2018, for the cumulative impact of adopting the new guidance. The impact primarily related to the
change in the recognition and measurement of certain types of variable consideration, which resulted in the increase in
sales allowance reserves (i.e. refund liabilities) by a net of $1,627,000 and increased other assets (i.e. return related assets)
by approximately $716,000.
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Net Sales
The Company is engaged in one major line of business: the development, manufacture, and distribution of security
products, encompassing access control systems, door security products, intrusion and fire alarm systems, alarm
communication services, and video surveillance products for commercial and residential use. The Company also provides
wireless communication service for intrusion and fire alarm systems on a monthly basis. These products are used for
commercial, residential, institutional, industrial and governmental applications, and are sold worldwide principally to
independent distributors, dealers and installers of security equipment. Sales to unaffiliated customers are primarily shipped
from the United States.
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.
For product sales, the Company typically transfers control at a point in time upon shipment or delivery of the product. For
monthly communication services the Company satisfies its performance obligation as the services are rendered and
therefore recognizes revenue over the monthly period.
Typically timing of revenue recognition coincides with the timing of invoicing to the customers, at which time the
Company has an unconditional right to consideration. As such, the Company typically records a receivable when revenue
is recognized.
The contract with the customer states the final terms of the sale, including the description, quantity, and price of each
product purchased. Payment for product sales is typically due within 30 and 180 days of the delivery date. Payment for
monthly communication services is billed on a monthly basis and is typically due at the beginning of the month of service.
The Company provides limited standard warranty for defective products, usually for a period of 24 to 36 months. The
Company accepts returns for such defective products as well as for other limited circumstances. The Company also
provides rebates to customers for meeting specified purchasing targets and other coupons or credits in limited
circumstances. The Company establishes reserves for the estimated returns, rebates and credits and measures such variable
consideration based on the expected value method using an analysis of historical data. Changes to the estimated variable
consideration in subsequent periods are not material. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company included refund liabilities
of approximately $3,331,000 and $3,524,000, respectively, in current liabilities. As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the
Company included return-related assets of approximately $701,000 and $820,000, respectively, in other current assets.
The Company analyzes sales returns and is able to make reasonable and reliable estimates of product returns based on the
Company’s past history. Estimates for sales returns are based on several factors including actual returns and based on
expected return data communicated to it by its customers. Accordingly, the Company believes that its historical returns
analysis is an accurate basis for its allowance for sales returns. Actual results could differ from those estimates. As a
percentage of gross sales, sales returns, rebates and allowances were 9% and 8% for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020
and 2019, respectively.
In accordance with ASC 606-10-50, the Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers into major product
lines. The Company determines that disaggregating revenue into these categories achieves the disclosure objective to
depict how the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. As
noted in the accounting policy footnote, the Company’s business consists of one operating segment. Following is the
disaggregation of revenues based on major product lines (in thousands):
Fiscal year ended June 30,
Major Product Lines:

Intrusion and access alarm products
Door locking devices

2020

2019

$31,310

$31,557

24,045

17,427

46,004

Services

Total Revenues

$101,359

NOTE 3 - Business and Credit Concentrations

53,948

$102,932
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An entity is more vulnerable to concentrations of credit risk if it is exposed to risk of loss greater than it would have had
if it mitigated its risk through diversification of customers. Such risks of loss manifest themselves differently, depending

Services
Total Revenues

24,045

17,427

$101,359

$102,932

NOTE 3 - Business and Credit Concentrations
An entity is more vulnerable to concentrations of credit risk if it is exposed to risk of loss greater than it would have had
if it mitigated its risk through diversification of customers. Such risks of loss manifest themselves differently, depending
on the nature of the concentration, and vary in significance. The Company had one customer with an accounts receivable
balance that comprised 24% and 19% of the Company’s accounts receivable at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Sales
to this customer did not exceed 10% of net sales during fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Sales to this customer comprised
10% of net sales during fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The Company had another customer with an accounts receivable
balance that comprised 10% of the Company’s accounts receivable at June 30, 2020. Sales to this customer did not exceed
10% of net sales in either of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. The Company had another customer with an
accounts receivable balance that comprised 10% of the Company’s accounts receivable at June 30, 2019. Sales to this
customer did not exceed 10% of net sales in either of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 or 2019.
NOTE 4 - Inventories
Inventories, net of reserves are valued at lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or net realizable value. The Company
regularly reviews parts and finished goods inventories on hand and, when necessary, records a provision for excess or
obsolete inventories. The Company also regularly reviews the period over which its inventories will be converted to sales.
Any inventories expected to convert to sales beyond 12 months from the balance sheet date are classified as non-current.
Inventories, net of reserves consist of the following as of June 30, (in thousands):
2020

2019

Component parts

$22,877

$21,543

Finished product

11,602

7,918

$41,755

$34,838

Work-in-process

7,276

5,377

Classification of inventories, net of reserves:
Current

Non-current

$35,231

$29,576

$41,755

$34,838

6,524

5,262
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NOTE 5 - Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):
2020
Land
Buildings
Molds and dies
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Building improvements
Less: accumulated depreciation and
amortization

June 30,

2019

$904
8,911
7,337
2,792
24,878
2,173

$904
8,911
7,333
2,691
23,915
1,625

46,995

45,379

(38,907)

(37,685)

$8,088

$7,694

Useful Life in Years
-30 to 40
3 to 5
5 to 10
7 to 10
Shorter of the lease term or life of asset

Depreciation and amortization expense on property, plant, and equipment was approximately $1,221,000 and $1,085,000
in fiscal 2020 and 2019, respectively.
NOTE 6 - Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes is comprised of the following (in thousands):
For the Years Ended
June 30,

Current income taxes:
Federal
State

Deferred income tax
provision
Provision for income taxes

2020

2019

$1,715

$310

2,119

451

165

771

$2,284

$1,222

404

141
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A reconciliation of the U.S. Federal statutory income tax rate to our actual effective tax rate on earnings before income
taxes is as follows for the years ended June 30, (dollars in thousands):
2020

2019

Amount

% of
Pre-tax
Income

Amount

% of
Pre-tax
Income

$2,269

21.0%

$2,822

21.0%

44

0.4%

49

0.3%

112

1.0%

103

0.8%

Tax at Federal statutory rate
Increases (decreases) in taxes resulting
from:
Meals and entertainment
State income taxes, net of Federal income
tax benefit
Foreign source income not subject to tax
R&D Credit

(1,213)

(11.2)%

(1,219)

(9.1)%

0

0.0%

0

0.0%

(523)

Transition tax

Foreign withholding tax

(4.8)%

0

Release of accrued tax reserves

(408)

0.0%

0

0

(151)

(1.1)%

7.7%

12

0.1%

775

7.1%

Other, net

(12)

(0.1)%

14

$2,284

21.1%

$1,222

832

Effective tax rate

0.0%

0.0%

Uncertain Tax Positions

IRS examination settlements

(3.0)%

0

0.0%
0.1%
9.1%

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at June 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows (in thousands):
Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities)
Accounts receivable
Inventories

Accrued liabilities

Stock based compensation expense

2020

2019

$40

374

$17

246

262

250

96

36

Intangibles

(300)

(502)

Property, plant and equipment

(484)

(407)

Other deferred tax liabilities

(408)

(409)

--

--

R&D credit

Revenue reserves

Valuation allowance

Net deferred tax liabilities

0

378

308

319

(112)

(72)

$ (112)

$ (72)

The Company has identified the United States and New York State as its major tax jurisdictions. Fiscal year 2017 is
currently under audit by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”). Fiscal year 2018 and forward years are still open for
examination. In addition, the Company has a wholly-owned subsidiary which operates in a Free Zone in the Dominican
Republic (“DR”) and is exempt from DR income tax.
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The Company was audited by the IRS for the fiscal year 2016. In July 2019, the Company received Form 4549-A, Income
Tax Examination Changes from the IRS proposing an adjustment to income for the fiscal 2016 tax year regarding deemed
dividends based on its interpretation of Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) Section 956 arising from the intercompany balances
on the books of the Company. In August 2019, the Company filed a formal protest with the IRS requesting an opportunity
to appeal the examination findings to the Appeals Office. During fiscal year 2020, the Company settled the issue at
Appeals. There is a provision recorded for the federal and state impact of $762,000 and $70,000, respectively.
The Company is currently under audit for the fiscal year 2017. The IRS has raised the IRC Section 956 issue that was
settled during the fiscal year 2016 audit. The Company strongly believes that the position of the IRS with regard to this
matter is inconsistent with the provisions of IRC Section 956 and that the Company is willing to go to court, if necessary
to argue its position. During fiscal year 2020, the Company’s Provision for income taxes included a provision for the
incremental tax liability of $657,000 and interest of $66,000 was recorded for the 2017 and 2018 fiscal years.
The provision for income taxes represents Federal, foreign, and state and local income taxes. The effective rate differs
from statutory rates due to the effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions, state and local income taxes, tax benefit of R&D
credits, certain nondeductible expenses, uncertain tax positions, audit settlements and global intangible low-taxed income
(“GILTI”).
On December 22, 2017, the U.S. government passed the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Act”). The Tax Act is
comprehensive tax legislation effective January 1, 2018 that implements complex changes to the U.S. tax code including,
but not limited to, the reduction of the corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% and includes provisions to tax GILTI. We are
subject to the GILTI provisions beginning with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The Tax Act also imposed a one-time
transition tax on its unremitted foreign earnings. ASC 740 requires filers to record the effects of tax law changes in the
period enacted. However, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB 118”), that permits filers to record
provisional amounts during a measurement period ending no later than one year from the date of the Act’s enactment. As
of March 31, 2019, the Company finalized its accounting for the income tax effects of the Tax Act and no additional
expense was recorded since the final transition tax expense was equal to the $381,000 provisional expense reported in the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The net section 965 tax liability was $338,000, which is payable over 8 years.
During the year ending June 30, 2020 the Company increased its reserve for uncertain income tax positions by $824,000.
The Company’s practice is to recognize interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense and
accrued income taxes. As of June 30, 2020, the Company had accrued interest totaling $83,000 and $866,000 of
unrecognized net tax benefits that, if recognized, would favorably affect the Company’s effective income tax rate in any
future period. The Company does not expect that its unrecognized tax benefits will significantly change within the next
twelve months. The Company claims R&D tax credits on eligible research and development expenditures. The R&D tax
credits are recognized as a reduction to income tax expense.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in thousands):
Tax
Balance of gross unrecognized tax benefits as of July 1, 2018
Decrease to unrecognized tax benefits resulting from the release of
R&D credits due to the IRS audit
Increases to unrecognized tax benefits resulting from the generation of
additional R&D credits

Interest

$221

Total

$ --

$221

(151)

(151)

55

--

55

Balance of gross unrecognized tax benefits as of June 30, 2019
Increase to unrecognized tax benefits resulting from deemed dividends
for investments in US property
Increases to unrecognized tax benefits resulting from the generation of
additional R&D credits

$125

$ --

$125

682

83

765

59

--

59

Balance of gross unrecognized tax benefits as of June 30, 2020

$866

$83

$949

The Company plans to permanently reinvest a substantial portion of its foreign earnings and as such has not provided
withholding tax on the permanently reinvested earnings. The Company has accrued $408,000 for withholding taxes on
undistributed earnings that are not permanently reinvested. As of June 30, 2020 the Company had approximately $42.5
million of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries.
NOTE 7 - Long-Term Debt
As of June 30, 2020, long-term debt consisted of a revolving line of credit of $11,000,000 (“Agreement”) which expires
in June 2021 and term loans from the U.S. Small Business Administration totaling $3,904,000 through its Payroll
Protection Program.
Outstanding balances and interest rates as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 are as follows (dollars in thousands):
June 30, 2020
Outstanding
Revolving line of credit
Term loans

June 30, 2019

Interest Rate

Outstanding

Interest Rate

$ --

n/a

$ --

n/a

3,904

1%

--

n/a

3,904

--

Less: current maturities

(1,794)

--

Long-term debt

$2,110

$ --

The Agreement also provides for a LIBOR-based interest rate option of LIBOR plus 1.15% to 2.00%, depending on the
ratio of outstanding debt to EBITDA, which is to be measured and adjusted quarterly, a prime rate-based option of the
prime rate plus 0.25% and other terms and conditions as more fully described in the Agreement. In addition, the Agreement
provides for availability to be limited to the lesser of $11,000,000 or the result of a borrowing base formula based upon
the Company’s Accounts Receivables and Inventory values net of certain deductions. The Company’s obligations under
the Agreement continue to be secured by all of its assets, including but not limited to, deposit accounts, accounts receivable,
inventory, and the Company’s corporate headquarters in Amityville, NY, equipment and fixtures and intangible assets. In
addition, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, with the exception of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries, have issued
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guarantees and pledges of all of their assets to secure the Company’s obligations under the Agreement. All of the
outstanding common stock of the Company’s domestic subsidiaries and 65% of the common stock of the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries has been pledged to secure the Company’s obligations under the Agreement.
The Agreement contains various restrictions and covenants including, among others, restrictions on payment of dividends,
restrictions on borrowings and compliance with certain financial ratios, as defined in the Agreement.
During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2020, the Company received the proceeds of promissory notes dated between April 17,
2020 and May 7, 2020 (the “PPP Loan Agreement”), entered into between the Company and HSBC Bank USA N.A., as
lender (the “Lender). Lender made the loans pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (the “PPP”), created by Section
1102 of the CARES Act and governed by the CARES Act, Section 7(a)(36) of the Small Business Act, any rules or
guidance that has been issued by the SBA implementing the PPP and acting as guarantor, or any other applicable loan
program requirements, as defined in 13 CFR § 120.10, as amended from time to time. Pursuant to the PPP Loan Agreement,
the Lender made loans to the Company with an aggregate principal amount of $3,904,000 (the “PPP Loan”).
The maturity dates of the PPP Loan are between April 17, 2022 and May 7, 2022, which is two years from the PPP
Loan Agreement date. The interest accrues from the date of disbursement of the PPP Loan (the “Effective Date”). The PPP
Loan bears interest at a fixed rate equal to one percent (1%) per annum and interest will accrue from the Effective Date.
PPP Loan payments are deferred for the first six months from the Effective Date. Subject to any PPP Loan forgiveness
granted by the CARES Act, the Company will subsequently pay 18 fully amortized monthly consecutive principal and
interest payments for all principal and all accrued interest not yet paid, with the first PPP Loan payment due on the date
that is seven months after the Effective Date. The proceeds of the PPP Loan shall be used for the following purposes only:
(i) payroll costs as defined by the CARES Act, (ii) costs related to the continuation of group health care benefits during
periods of paid sick, medical, or family leave, and insurance premiums; (iii) mortgage interest payments, (iv) rent
payments, (v) utility payments, (vi) interest payments on any other debt obligations incurred before February 15, 2020,
and/or (vii) refinancing a SBA Economic Injury Disaster Loan made between January 31, 2020 and April 3, 2020.
The PPP Loan and the related documentation contain customary events of default, including: (i) any representation or
warranty made, or financial or other information provided, by the Company under the PPP Loan Agreement being false or
misleading in any material respect; (ii) the failure by the Company to make required payments; (iii) the failure by the
Company to perform or comply with certain agreements; and (iv) the dissolution or termination of the Company's existence
as a going business, the insolvency of the Company, the appointment of a receiver for any part of the Company's property,
any assignment for the benefit of creditors, any type of creditor workout, or the commencement of any proceeding under
any bankruptcy or insolvency laws by or against the Company. Upon default, Lender may declare the entire unpaid
principal balance under this Note and all accrued unpaid interest immediately due, and then the Company will pay that
amount. Lender may hire or pay someone else to help collect this Note if the Company does not pay. The Company will
pay Lender that amount. This includes, subject to any limits under applicable law, Lender's attorneys' fees and Lender's
legal expenses, whether or not there is a lawsuit, including attorneys' fees, expenses for bankruptcy proceedings (including
efforts to modify or vacate any automatic stay or injunction), and appeals. The Company also will pay any court costs, in
addition to all other sums provided by law.
Should the Company default on the PPP Loan, SBA may be required to pay Lender under the SBA guarantee. SBA may
then seek recovery of these funds from the Company and the Company may not claim or assert against SBA any immunities
or defenses available under local law to defeat, modify or otherwise limit the Company's obligation to repay to SBA any
funds advanced by Lender to the Company. If the Company defaults on the SBA-guaranteed loan and SBA suffers a loss,
the names of the small business will be referred for listing in the Credit Alert Verification Reporting System (CAIVRS)
database, which may affect their edibility for further assistance.
Pursuant to the CARES Act, the loan may be forgiven by the SBA. The Company anticipates applying for forgiveness of
these loans during fiscal 2021. The amount of loan forgiveness is determined by and is subject to the sole approval of the
SBA. The amount of loan forgiveness may be reduced if loan proceeds are spent inappropriately. To receive loan
forgiveness, the Company must apply for loan forgiveness and provide documentation as requested by the SBA. There
will be no loan forgiveness without the Company’s submission of the proper application and documentation to Lender to
include all SBA requirements. Not more than 25% of the amount forgiven can be attributable to non-payroll costs. No
assurance can be provided that the Company will obtain forgiveness of the PPP Loan in whole or in part.
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The Company is accounting for the PPP Loan as debt in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 470, Debt and accrue interest in accordance with the interest method under
FASB ASC 835-30.
The Company will not impute additional interest at a market rate (even though the stated interest rate may be below market)
as transactions where interest rates are prescribed by governmental agencies are excluded from the scope of the FASB
ASC 835-30 guidance on imputing interest.
For purposes of de-recognition or forgiveness of the liability, FASB ASC 470-50-15-4 refers to guidance in FASB ASC
405-20. Based on the guidance in FASB ASC 405-20-40-1, the proceeds from the loan would remain recorded as a liability
until either (1) the loan is, in part or wholly, forgiven and the debtor has been “legally released” or (2) the debtor pays off
the loan to the creditor. Once the loan is, in part or wholly, forgiven and legal release is received, the Company will reduce
the liability by the amount forgiven and record a gain on extinguishment.
NOTE 8 - Stock Options
The Company follows ASC 718 (“Share-Based Payment”), which requires that all share based payments to employees,
including stock options, be recognized as compensation expense in the consolidated financial statements based on their
fair values and over the requisite service period. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded
non-cash compensation expense of $583,000 ($0.03 per basic and diluted share) and $160,000 ($0.01 per basic and diluted
share), respectively, relating to stock-based compensation.
2012 Employee Stock Option Plan
In December 2012, the stockholders approved the 2012 Employee Stock Option Plan (the 2012 Employee Plan). The 2012
Employee Plan authorizes the granting of awards, the exercise of which would allow up to an aggregate of 950,000 shares
of the Company's common stock to be acquired by the holders of such awards. Under this plan, the Company may grant
stock options, which are intended to qualify as incentive stock options (ISOs), to valued employees. Any plan participant
who is granted ISOs and possesses more than 10% of the voting rights of the Company's outstanding common stock must
be granted an option with a price of at least 110% of the fair market value on the date of grant.
Under the 2012 Employee Plan, stock options may be granted to valued employees with a term of up to 10 years at an
exercise price equal to or greater than the fair market value on the date of grant and are exercisable, in whole or in part, at
20% per year beginning on the date of grant. An option granted under this plan shall vest in full upon a “change in control”
as defined in the plan. At June 30, 2020, 117,840 stock options were outstanding, 35,000 stock options were exercisable
and 731,960 stock options were available for grant under this plan.
The fair value of each option granted during fiscal 2020 and 2019 was estimated on the date of grant using the BlackScholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:
Risk-free interest rates
Expected lives
Expected volatility
Expected dividend yields

2020

2019

0.6% - 2.1%
10 years
44% - 46%
0%

2.5% - 3.1%
10 years
48% - 52%
0%

The Company uses a weighted-average expected stock-price volatility assumption that is a combination of both current
and historical implied volatilities of the underlying stock. The implied volatilities were obtained from publicly available
data sources. For the weighted-average expected option life assumption, the Company considers the exercise behavior of
past grants. The average risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury Bond rate for the expected term of the options
and the average dividend yield is based on historical experience.
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The following table reflects activity under the 2012 Plan for the fiscal years ended June 30,:
2020

Options

2019
Weighted
average
exercise
price

Options

Weighted
average
exercise
price

Outstanding, beginning of year
Granted
Terminated
Exercised

72,500
70,940
(10,000)
(15,600)

$11.01
24.50
19.84
7.55

57,200
29,000
0
(13,700)

$7.09
16.59
0
6.42

Outstanding, end of year

117,840

$18.84

72,500

$11.01

Exercisable, end of year

35,000

$13.13

33,800

$8.05

Weighted average fair value at grant date of options
granted
Total intrinsic value of options exercised
Total intrinsic value of options outstanding
Total intrinsic value of options exercisable

$13.43
$278,000
$696,000
$389,000

$9.15
$160,000
$1,353,000
$731,000

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding under the 2012 Employee Plan at June 30,
2020:
Options outstanding
Options exercisable
Range of
exercise prices
$4.37-$33.59

Number
outstanding

Weighted
average
remaining
contractual life

Weighted
average exercise
price

Number
exercisable

Weighted
average exercise
price

117,840

8.4

$18.84

35,000

$6.50

117,840

8.4

$18.84

35,000

$6.50

As of June 30, 2020, there was $849,000 of unearned stock-based compensation cost related to share-based compensation
arrangements granted under the 2012 Employee Plan. 70,940 and 29,000 options were granted during the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 3,600 of the 15,600 stock options exercised during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2020 were settled by exchanging 1,628 shares of the Company’s common stock which were retired and returned to
unissued status upon receipt. 8,200 of the 13,700 stock options exercised during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 were
settled by exchanging 3,106 shares of the Company’s common stock which were retired and returned to unissued status
upon receipt. The total grant date fair value of the options vesting during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
under this plan was $197,000 and $95,000, respectively. $79,000 and $31,000 was received from option exercises for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and the actual tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from
option exercises was $0 for each of these periods.
2012 Non-Employee Stock Option Plan
In December 2012, the stockholders approved the 2012 Non-Employee Stock Option Plan (the 2012 Non-Employee Plan).
This plan authorizes the granting of awards, the exercise of which would allow up to an aggregate of 50,000 shares of the
Company's common stock to be acquired by the holders of such awards. Under this plan, the Company may grant stock
options to non-employee directors and consultants to the Company and its subsidiaries.
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Under the 2012 Non-Employee Plan, stock options may be granted with a term of up to 10 years at an exercise price equal
to or greater than the fair market value on the date of grant and are exercisable in whole or in part at 20% per year beginning
on the date of grant. An option granted under this plan shall vest in full upon a “change in control” as defined in the plan.
At June 30, 2020, 12,000 stock options were outstanding, 5,760 stock options were exercisable and no further stock options
were available for grant under this plan.
The fair value of each option granted during fiscal 2020 was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes optionpricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:
2020
Risk-free interest rates
Expected lives
Expected volatility
Expected dividend yields

1.6%
10 years
44%
0%

The following table reflects activity under the 2012 Non-Employee Plan for the fiscal years ended June 30,:
2020

Options

2019
Weighted
average
exercise
price

Options

Weighted
average
exercise
price

Outstanding, beginning of year
Granted
Terminated
Exercised

10,200
1,800
---

$7.99
23.35
---

27,800
-(1,800)
(15,800)

$6.85
-8.70
5.91

Outstanding, end of year

12,000

$10.29

10,200

$7.99

Exercisable, end of year

5,760

$8.35

3,000

$6.27

Weighted average fair value at grant date of options
granted
Total intrinsic value of options exercised
Total intrinsic value of options outstanding
Total intrinsic value of options exercisable

$12.94
n/a
$157,000
$87,000

n/a
$192,000
$221,000
$70,000

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding under the 2012 Non-Employee Plan at June
30, 2020:
Options outstanding
Options exercisable
Range of
exercise prices

Number
outstanding

$4.37 - $23.35

12,000
12,000

Weighted average
remaining
contractual life

Weighted
average exercise
price

Number
exercisable

Weighted
average exercise
price

7.2

$10.29

5,760

$8.35

7.2

$10.29

5,760

$8.35

As of June 30, 2020, there was $46,000 of unearned stock-based compensation cost related to share-based compensation
arrangements granted under the 2012 Non-Employee Plan. 1,800 and 0 options were granted during the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 14,600 of the 15,800 stock options exercised during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019 were settled by exchanging 4,832 shares of the Company’s common stock which were retired and returned
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to unissued status upon receipt. The total grant date fair value of the options vesting during each of the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019 under this plan was $18,000 and $22,000, respectively.
2018 Non-Employee Stock Option Plan
In December 2018, the stockholders approved the 2018 Non-Employee Stock Option Plan (the “2018 Non-Employee
Plan”). This plan authorizes the granting of awards, the exercise of which would allow up to an aggregate of 50,000 shares
of the Company's common stock to be acquired by the holders of such awards. Under this plan, the Company may grant
stock options to non-employee directors and consultants to the Company and its subsidiaries.
Under the 2018 Non-Employee Plan, stock options may be granted with a term of up to 10 years at an exercise price equal
to or greater than the fair market value on the date of grant and are exercisable in whole or in part at 20% per year beginning
on the date of grant. An option granted under this plan shall vest in full upon a “change in control” as defined in the plan.
At June 30, 2020, 48,400 stock options were outstanding, 12,240 stock options were exercisable and 0 stock options were
available for grant under this plan.
The fair value of each option granted during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was estimated on the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:
2020
Risk-free interest rates
Expected lives
Expected volatility
Expected dividend yields

1.6% - 1.8%
10 years
44% - 45%
0%

2019
2.9%
10 years
50%
0%

The following table reflects activity under the 2018 Non-Employee plan for the fiscal year ended June 30,:
2020

Options

2019
Weighted
average
exercise
price

Options

Weighted
average
exercise
price

Outstanding, beginning of year
Granted
Terminated
Exercised

15,200
33,200
---

$16.20
26.82
---

-20,000
(3,200)
(1,600)

$ -16.20
16.20
16.20

Outstanding, end of year

48,400

$23.48

15,200

$16.20

Exercisable, end of year

12,240

$21.96

2,400

$16.20

Weighted average fair value at grant date of options
granted
Total intrinsic value of options exercised
Total intrinsic value of options outstanding
Total intrinsic value of options exercisable

$15.09
n/a
$110,000
$40,000
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$10.24
$24,000
$205,000
$32,000

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding under the 2018 Non- Employee Plan at June
30, 2020:
Options outstanding
Options exercisable
Range of
exercise prices
$16.20-$30.54

Number
outstanding

Weighted
average
remaining
contractual life

Weighted
average exercise
price

Number
exercisable

Weighted
average exercise
price

48,400

9.2

$23.48

12,240

$21.96

48,400

9.2

$23.48

12,240

$21.96

As of June 30, 2020, there was $410,000 of unearned stock-based compensation cost related to share-based compensation
arrangements granted under the 2018 Non-Employee Plan. 33,200 and 20,000 options were granted during the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 800 of the 1,600 stock options exercised during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2019 were settled by exchanging 395 shares of the Company’s common stock which were retired and returned to unissued
status upon receipt and the actual tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from option exercises was $0 for each of these
periods. The total grant date fair value of the options vesting during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019 under
this plan was $133,000 and $41,000, respectively.
2020 Non-Employee Stock Option Plan
In May 2020, the stockholders approved the 2020 Non-Employee Stock Option Plan (the “2020 Non-Employee Plan”).
This plan authorizes the granting of awards, the exercise of which would allow up to an aggregate of 50,000 shares of the
Company's common stock to be acquired by the holders of such awards. Under this plan, the Company may grant stock
options to non-employee directors and consultants to the Company and its subsidiaries.
Under the 2020 Non-Employee Plan, stock options may be granted with a term of up to 10 years at an exercise price equal
to or greater than the fair market value on the date of grant and are exercisable in whole or in part at 20% per year beginning
on the date of grant. An option granted under this plan shall vest in full upon a “change in control” as defined in the plan.
At June 30, 2020, 0 stock options were outstanding, 0 stock options were exercisable and 50,000 stock options were
available for grant under this plan.
NOTE 9 – Stockholders’ Equity Transactions
On September 16, 2014 the Company’s board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to 1 million of the approximately
19.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock then outstanding. Such repurchases may be made from time to time
in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions subject to market conditions and the market price of the common
stock. Relative to the loan agreement described in Note 6, the Company’s lender gave its consent to this stock repurchase
plan. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 the Company repurchased 144,405 shares of its outstanding common
stock at a weighted average price of $16.99. Shares repurchased through June 30, 2020 are included in the Company’s
Treasury Stock as of June 30, 2020. Pursuant to the PPP Loan Agreement described in Note 7, the Company may not
repurchase any of its shares of common stock until 12 months after the termination of the term loans described therein.
During fiscal 2020, certain employees and Directors exercised stock options under the Company’s 2012 Employee and
Non-Employee Stock Option Plans totaling 15,600 shares. 3,600 of these exercises were completed as cashless exercises
as allowed for under the Plans, where the exercise shares are issued by the Company in exchange for shares of the
Company’s common stock that are owned by the optionees. The number of shares surrendered by the optionees was 1,628
and was based upon the per share price on the effective date of the option exercise.
During fiscal 2019, certain employees and Directors exercised stock options under the Company’s 2012 Employee and
Non-Employee Stock Option Plans and the Company’s 2002 Employee Stock Option Plan totaling 31,100 shares. 23,600
of these exercises were completed as cashless exercises as allowed for under the Plans, where the exercise shares are issued
by the Company in exchange for shares of the Company’s common stock that are owned by the optionees. The number of
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shares surrendered by the optionees was 8,333 and was based upon the per share price on the effective date of the option
exercise.
NOTE 10 - 401(k) Plan
The Company maintains a 401(k) plan (“the Plan”) that covers all U.S. non-union employees with one or more years of
service and is qualified under Sections 401(a) and 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Company contributions to this
plan are discretionary and totaled $133,000 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.
NOTE 11 - Commitments and Contingencies
Leases
Effective July 1, 2019, the Company adopted the new lease accounting standard using the modified retrospective transition
option of applying the new standard at the adoption date. In addition, we elected the package of practical expedients
permitted under the transition guidance within the new standard, which among other things, allowed us to not reassess (1)
whether any expired or existing contracts are or contain leases, (2) lease classification for any expired or existing leases,
and (3) initial direct costs for any existing leases. Adoption of the new standard resulted in the recording of an operating
ROU asset and lease liabilities of approximately $7.7 million. Given the length of the lease term, the right-of-use asset and
corresponding liability assume a weighted discount rate as disclosed below. A change in the rate utilized could have a
material effect on the amounts reported. Financial positions for reporting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2019 are
presented under new guidance, while prior period amounts are not adjusted and continue to be reported in accordance with
previous guidance.
Our lease obligation consists of a 99 year lease which commenced on April 26, 1993 with one of the Company’s foreign
subsidiaries, expiring in 2092, for approximately four acres of land in the Dominican Republic at an annual cost of
$288,000, on which the Company’s principal production facility is located.
Operating leases are included in operating lease right-of-use assets, accrued expenses and operating lease liabilities, noncurrent on our condensed consolidated balance sheets.
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, cash payments against operating lease liabilities totaled $240.
Supplemental balance sheet information related to operating leases was as follows:
Weighted-average remaining lease term
72 years
Weighted-average discount rate
3.55%
The following is a schedule, by years, of maturities of lease liabilities as of June 30, 2020 (in thousands):
Year Ending June 30,
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter
Total

Amount
$282
272
263
254
245
6,079
$7,395
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As previously disclosed in our 2019 Annual Report on Form 10-K and under the previous lease accounting standard,
undiscounted future minimum lease payments for operating leases having initial or remaining non-cancellable lease terms
in excess of one year are as follows (in thousands):
Year Ending June 30,

Amount

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter

$315
314
311
297
288
19,536

Total

$21,061

Operating lease expense totaled approximately $315,000 and $330,000, for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively.
Litigation
In the normal course of business, the Company is a party to claims and/or litigation. Management believes that the
settlement of such claims and/or litigation, considered in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company's financial position and results of operations.
Employment Agreements
As of June 30, 2020, the Company was obligated under two employment agreements and one severance agreement. The
employment agreements are with the Company’s CEO and the Senior Vice President of Engineering (“the SVP of
Engineering”). The employment agreement with the CEO provides for an annual salary of $752,000, as adjusted for
inflation; incentive compensation as may be approved by the Board of Directors from time to time and a termination
payment in an amount up to 299% of the average of the prior five calendar year's compensation, subject to certain
limitations, as defined in the agreement. The employment agreement renews annually in August unless either party gives
the other notice of non-renewal at least six months prior to the end of the applicable term. The employment agreement
with the SVP of Engineering expires in August 2022 and provides for an annual salary of $333,799, and, if terminated by
the Company without cause, severance of nine month’s salary and continued company-sponsored health insurance for six
months from the date of termination. The severance agreement is with the Senior Vice President of Operations and Finance
and provides for, if terminated by the Company without cause or within three months of a change in corporate control of
the Company, severance of nine month’s salary, continued company-sponsored health insurance for six months from the
date of termination and certain non-compete and other restrictive provisions.
NOTE 12 - Geographical Data
The Company is engaged in one major line of business: the development, manufacture, and distribution of security
products, encompassing access control systems, door-locking products, intrusion and fire alarm systems and video
surveillance products for commercial and residential use. The Company also provides wireless communication service
for intrusion and fire alarm systems. These products are used for commercial, residential, institutional, industrial and
governmental applications, and are sold worldwide principally to independent distributors, dealers and installers of
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security equipment. Sales to unaffiliated customers are primarily shipped from the United States. The Company has
customers worldwide with major concentrations in North America.
Financial Information Relating to Domestic and Foreign Operations
Fiscal Year ended June 30,
2020
2019
(in thousands)
Sales to external customers(1):
Domestic
Foreign

Total Net Sales

$99,496
1,863

$ 100,716
2,216

$101,359

$102,932

As of June 30,

Identifiable assets:

2020

2019

$69,436
36,402

$59,683
26,225

$105,838

$85,908

United States
Dominican Republic (2)

Total Identifiable Assets

(1) All of the Company's sales originate in the United States and are shipped primarily from the Company's facilities in
the United States. There were no sales into any one foreign country in excess of 10% of total Net Sales.
(2) Consists primarily of inventories (2020 = $25,246; 2019 = $22,549), operating lease assets (2020 = $7,395; 2019 = $0)
and fixed assets (2020 = $3,481; 2019 = $3,443) located at the Company's principal manufacturing facility in the
Dominican Republic.
NOTE 13 – Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the date of the consolidated financial statements for events
requiring recording or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.
ITEM 9: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
None
ITEM 9A: CONTROL AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. At the conclusion of the period ended June 30, 2020, we carried out
an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures.
Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective as of June 30, 2020.
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Management’s Report on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting is set forth on page FS-1.
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Audit Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting has been audited by Baker Tilly US, LLP an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated
in their report, which is included herein on page FS-2.
Limitations on Internal Control. All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent
limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect
to financial statement preparation and presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods
are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
The Board of Directors of the Company has an Audit Committee comprised of three non-management directors. The
Committee meets periodically with financial management and the independent auditors to review accounting, control,
audit and financial reporting matters. Baker Tilly US, LLP has full and free access to the Audit Committee, with and
without the presence of management.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting. There have been no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting during the quarter ended June 30, 2020 that has materially affected or is likely to materially affect our internal
controls over financial reporting.
ITEM 9B: OTHER INFORMATION
None
PART III
ITEM 10: DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information about our directors appearing in the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2020 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 days
after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Proxy Statement”) under the heading
“Election of Directors”, is incorporated herein by reference.
We have adopted a Code of Ethics which applies to our senior executive and financial officers, among others. The Code
is posted on our website, www.napcosecurity.com, under the “Investors – Other” caption. We intend to make all required
disclosures regarding any amendment to, or waiver of, a provision of the Code of Ethics for senior executive and financial
officers by posting such information on our website.
The information appearing in the Proxy Statement relating to the members of the Audit Committee and the Audit
Committee financial expert under the headings “Corporate Governance and Board Matters – Board Structure and
Committee Composition” and “Corporate Governance and Board Matters – Board Structure and Committee Composition
– Audit Committee” and the information appearing in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Delinquent Section 16(c)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” is incorporated herein by this reference.
The information set forth in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Information Concerning Executive Officers” is
incorporated herein by reference.
ITEM 11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The information appearing in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Executive Compensation” and the information
appearing in the Proxy Statement relating to the compensation of directors under the caption “Compensation of Directors”
are incorporated herein by this reference.

58

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
The information appearing in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock” is
incorporated herein by this reference.
Information regarding Equity Compensation Plan Information as of June 30, 2020 is included in Item 5.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE
The information appearing in the Proxy Statement under the headings “Corporate Governance and Board Matters –
Independence of Directors,” “Corporate Governance and Board Matters – Board Structure and Committee Composition,”
“Corporate Governance – Policy with Respect to Related Person Transactions,” and “Executive Compensation – Certain
Transactions” is incorporated herein by this reference.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
Information appearing in the Proxy Statement under the headings “Principal Accountant Fees” and “Policy on Audit
Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent Auditors” is incorporated herein
by this reference.
PART IV
Omitted.
Upon any request of any shareholder of the Company, the Company will provide such shareholder a copy of the Company’s
Annual Report Form 10-K for 2020, including the financial statements and schedules thereto, filed with the Security and
Exchange Commission. Any such request should be directed to Secretary, NAPCO Security Technologies, Inc., 333
Bayview Avenue, Amityville, New York, 11701. There will be no charge for such reports unless one or more exhibits
thereto are requested, in which case the Company’s reasonable expenses of furnishing such exhibits requested may be
charged.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant
has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
September 15, 2020
NAPCO SECURITY TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(Registrant)
By: /s/RICHARD SOLOWAY
Richard Soloway
Chairman of the Board of
Directors, President and Secretary
(Principal Executive Officer)
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and the dates indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

/s/RICHARD SOLOWAY
Richard Soloway

Chairman of the Board of Directors,
President and Secretary and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/KEVIN S. BUCHEL
Kevin S. Buchel

Senior Vice President of Operations
September 15, 2020
and Finance and Treasurer and Director
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/PAUL STEPHEN BEEBER
Paul Stephen Beeber

Director

September 15, 2020

/s/RICK LAZIO
Rick Lazio

Director

September 15, 2020

/s/DONNA SOLOWAY
Donna Soloway

Director

September 15, 2020

/s/ROBERT UNGAR
Robert Ungar

Director

September 15, 2020

/s/ANDREW J. WILDER
Andrew J. Wilder

Director

September 15, 2020
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NAPCO SECURITY TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NON-GAAP MEASURES OF PERFORMANCE* (unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Three months ended
June 30,
2020
Net (loss) income (GAAP)
Add back provision for income taxes
Add back interest and other expense
Operating (loss) income (GAAP)
Adjustments for non-GAAP measures of performance:
Add back amortization of acquisition-related intangibles
Add back stock-based compensation expense
Add back impairment of Goodwill and Other intangibles
Adjusted non-GAAP operating income
Add back depreciation and other amortization
Adjusted EBITDA (earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization)
Adjusted EBITDA* per Diluted Share
Weighted average number of Diluted Shares outstanding

Twelve months ended
June 30,

2019

2020

2019

$(1,900)
1,059
6

$4,728
35
3

$ 8,520
2,284
9

$12,223
1,222
21

(835)

4,766

10,813

13,466

66
85
1,852

78
8
-

264
583
1,852

313
160
-

1,168
312

4,852
299

13,512
1,232

13,939
1,096

$1,480

$5,151

$14,744

$15,035

$0.08

$0.28

$0.80

$0.81

18,375,000

18,534,000

18,493,000

18,624,000

* Non-GAAP Information
Non-GAAP Information. Certain non-GAAP measures are included above, including EBITDA, non-GAAP operating income and Adjusted
EBITDA. We define EBITDA as GAAP net income plus income tax expense, net interest expense, non-cash stock-based expense and
depreciation and amortization expense. Non-GAAP operating income does not include amortization of intangibles or stock-based compensation expense. These non-GAAP measures are provided to enhance the user’s overall understanding of our financial performance. By
excluding these charges our non-GAAP results provide information to management and investors that is useful in assessing NAPCO’s core
operating performance and in comparing our results of operations on a consistent basis from period to period. The presentation of this
information is not meant to be a substitute for the corresponding financial measures prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Investors are encouraged to review the reconciliation of GAAP to non-GAAP financial measures set forth above.
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